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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Exchange on Which Registered
Shares of Beneficial Interest,

without par value
NYSE MKT

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:  None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act.  Yes ☐  No ☒

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Act.  Yes
☐  No ☒

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:  (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes ☒ No ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its Web site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).  Yes ☒ No ☐
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Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company.  See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. 

Large Accelerated Filer ☐        Accelerated Filer  ☐             Non-Accelerated Filer  ☐        Smaller reporting company  ☒

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes
☐  No ☒

Aggregate market value of Shares of Beneficial Interest held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of July 31, 2013,
based upon the closing sales price of the registrant’s Shares of Beneficial Interest on that date, as reported on the
NYSE MKT:  $5,366,115.

Number of Shares of Beneficial Interest outstanding as of April 18, 2014: 9,068,055.

Documents incorporated by reference:  Portions of the following documents are incorporated by reference:  Proxy
Statement for 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (portions of which are incorporated by reference into Part III
hereof).
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PART I

Item 1.    BUSINESS

INTRODUCTION TO OUR BUSINESS

InnSuites Hospitality Trust (the “Trust”) is headquartered in Phoenix, Arizona and is an unincorporated Ohio real estate
investment trust formed June 21, 1979; however, the Trust is not a real estate investment trust for federal taxation
purposes. The Trust, with its affiliates RRF Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership (the “Partnership”), and
InnSuites Hotels, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“InnSuites Hotels”), owns and operates five hotels, provides management
services for eight hotels, and provides trademark license services for nine hotels.  On January 31, 2014, the Trust
owned a 72.04% sole general partner interest in the Partnership, which wholly-owned one InnSuites® hotel located in
Tucson, Arizona, controlled a 51.00% interest in another InnSuites® hotel located in Tucson, Arizona and together
with the Trust controlled a 61.60% interest in one InnSuites® hotel located in Ontario, California.  The Trust also
owned a direct 99.9% interest in one InnSuites® hotel located in Yuma, Arizona and owned a direct 50.85% interest
in one InnSuites® hotel located in Albuquerque, New Mexico (all five InnSuites® hotels are hereinafter referred to as
the “Hotels”).  InnSuites Hotels, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Trust, provides management services for the Hotels
and three hotels owned by affiliates of James F. Wirth, the Trust’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.  InnSuites
Hotels also provides trademark and licensing services to the Hotels, three hotels owned by affiliates of Mr. Wirth and
one unrelated hotel property.  In addition, InnSuites Hotels provides reservations services for 3,100 unrelated hotel
properties. The Trust has approximately 300 employees.

The Hotels have an aggregate of 843 hotel suites and operate as moderate and full-service hotels that apply a value
studio and two-room suite operating philosophy formulated in 1980 by Mr. Wirth.  The Trust owns and operates
hotels as studio and two-room suite hotels that offer services such as free hot breakfast buffets and complimentary
afternoon social hours plus amenities, such as microwave ovens, refrigerators, free high-speed hard wired and wireless
internet access and coffee makers in each studio or two-room suite.

On March 24, 2014, the Trust entered into a Partnership Interests Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with
Suite Hotels, LLC (the “Seller”), an affiliate of James F. Wirth, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Trust, to
purchase 51% of the partnership interests of Fort Worth/Dallas Suite Hospitality Partnership, an Arizona general
partnership (the “Company”), upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement. The Company is in
the hospitality business and owns and operates a 168-suite hotel in the Fort Worth/Dallas area known as Hotel Trinity.
The Purchase Agreement was unanimously approved by independent trustees of the Trust.
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As consideration for the purchase of 51% of the partnership interests of the Company, the Trust agreed to pay to the
Seller an aggregate purchase price of 51% of the book value of the Net Assets of the Company as of January 31, 2014
(the “Purchase Price”). The “Net Assets” means the total book value of the assets of the Company less any outstanding
book value of all of the Company’s liabilities. The Company’s “Net Assets” were approximately $1,700,000 as of January
31, 2014. The Trust agreed to pay to the Seller at the Purchase Price the equivalent value of the Trusts’ shares of
beneficial interest, no par value per share (“Stock”). The number of the Trust’s shares of Stock to be issued to the Seller
will be determined by dividing the Purchase Price by the average daily closing price of the Stock during the month of
January 2014. The Trust expects to issue approximately 530,791 shares of Stock to the Seller for the purchase of the
51% partnership interests of the Company.

The consummation of the transaction depends upon the satisfaction or waiver of a number of certain customary
closing conditions and approvals. In addition, the consummation of the transaction is subject to the approval of the
Trust’s shareholders.

The transaction is expected to close in June 2014 but there can be no assurances that the transaction will be completed
on the proposed terms or at all. The Trust expects to hold its annual meeting of shareholders in June 2014 where the
Trust’s shareholders will vote on the issuance of shares of Stock as consideration for the transaction.

The Trust believes that a significant opportunity for revenue growth and profitability will arise from the skillful
management of the Trust’s Hotels or managed hotel properties for both increased occupancy and rates.  The Trust’s
primary business objective is to maximize returns to its shareholders through increases in asset value and long-term
total returns to shareholders.  The Trust seeks to achieve this objective through participation in increased revenues
from the Hotels as a result of intensive management and marketing of the InnSuites® hotels and the “InnSuites
Boutique Hotel Collection” brands in the southwestern region of the United States.  See “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations -- Future Positioning” for a more detailed discussion of the
Trust’s strategic objectives.
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The Trust has a single class of Shares of Beneficial Interest, without par value, that are traded on the NYSE MKT
under the symbol “IHT.”  The Partnership has two outstanding classes of limited partnership interests, Class A and Class
B, which are identical in all respects.  However, each Class A Partnership unit is convertible, at the option of the Class
A holder, into one newly-issued Share of Beneficial Interest of the Trust and each Class B Partnership unit is
convertible, upon approval of the Board of Trustees of the Trust, into one newly-issued Share of Beneficial Interest of
the Trust.  The Partnership Agreement of the Partnership subjects both general and limited partner units to certain
restrictions on transfer.

MANAGEMENT AND LICENSING CONTRACTS

The Trust directly manages the Hotels through the Trust’s wholly-owned subsidiary, InnSuites Hotels.  Under the
management agreements, InnSuites Hotels manages the daily operations of the Hotels and the three hotels owned by
affiliates of Mr. Wirth.  All Trust managed Hotel expenses, revenues and reimbursements among the Trust, InnSuites
Hotels and the Partnership have been eliminated in consolidation.  The management fees for the Hotels are 2.5% of
room revenue and a monthly accounting fee of $2,000 per hotel. Prior to October 1, 2013, the management fees for
the three hotels owned by affiliates of Mr. Wirth were 2.5% of room revenue and an annual accounting fee of $27,000,
payable $1,000 per month with an additional payment of $15,000 for annual accounting closing activities. This
practice was ceased as of October 1, 2013, and replaced with management fees for the three hotels owned by Mr.
Wirth at 2.5% of room revenue and a monthly accounting fee of $2,000 per hotel.   These agreements have no
expiration date and may be cancelled by either party with 90-days written notice in the event the property changes
ownership.

The Trust also provides the use of the “InnSuites” trademark to the Hotels and the three hotels owned by affiliates of
Mr. Wirth through the Trust’s wholly-owned subsidiary, InnSuites Hotels.  From January 1, 2012 through December
31, 2012, InnSuites collected $10 per month per room for the first 100 rooms and $2 per month per room for the
number of rooms exceeding 100. As of January 1, 2013, these fees were discontinued.

MEMBERSHIP AGREEMENTS

InnSuites Hotels has entered into membership agreements with Best Western International, Inc. (“Best Western”) with
respect to four of the Hotels.  In exchange for use of the Best Western name, trademark and reservation system, the
participating Hotels pay fees to Best Western based on reservations received through the use of the Best Western
reservation system and the number of available suites at the participating Hotels.  The agreements with Best Western
have no specific expiration terms and may be cancelled by either party.  Best Western requires that the participating
hotels meet certain requirements for room quality, and the Hotels are subject to removal from its reservation system if
these requirements are not met.  The Hotels with third-party membership agreements received significant reservations
through the Best Western reservation system.  Under these arrangements, fees paid for membership fees and
reservations were approximately $310,000 and $313,000 for fiscal years January 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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COMPETITION IN THE HOTEL INDUSTRY

The hotel industry is highly competitive.  The Trust expects the major challenge for fiscal year 2015 to be continued
upgrade and market of the Hotels in the overall economy with competition for all business in the markets in which the
Trust operates, which may affect the Trust’s ability to increase room rates while maintaining and/or building market
share.  Each of the Hotels experiences competition primarily from other mid-market hotels located in its immediate
vicinity, but also competes with hotel properties located in other geographic markets.  While none of the Hotels’
competitors dominate any of the Trust’s geographic markets, some of those competitors may have greater marketing
and financial resources than the Trust.

Certain additional hotel property developments and/or hotel refurbishments have recently been completed by
competitors in a number of the Hotels’ markets, and additional hotel property developments may be built in the
future.  Such hotel developments have had, and could continue to have, an adverse effect on the revenue of our Hotels
in their respective markets.

The Trust has chosen to focus its hotel investments in the southwest region of the United States.   The Trust has a
concentration of assets in the southern Arizona market.  In the markets in which the Trust operates, in particular, the
Yuma, Arizona and Ontario, California markets, supply has increased during the past several years.  In the Tucson,
Arizona market, demand has increased during fiscal year 2014 based on an increase in tourism.  Either an increase in
supply or a decline in demand could result in increased competition, which could have an adverse effect on the
revenue of our Hotels in their respective markets.

The Trust may also compete for investment opportunities with other entities that have greater financial
resources.  These entities also may generally accept more risk than the Trust can prudently manage.  Competition may
generally reduce the number of suitable future investment opportunities available to the Trust and increase the
bargaining power of owners seeking to sell their properties.

4
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REGULATION

The Trust is subject to numerous federal, state and local government laws and regulations affecting the hospitality
industry, including usage, building and zoning requirements.  A violation of any of those laws and regulations or
increased government regulation could require the Trust to make unplanned expenditures which may result in higher
operating costs.  In addition, the Trust’s success in expanding our hotel operations depends upon its ability to obtain
necessary building permits and zoning variances from local authorities.  Compliance with these laws is time intensive
and costly and may reduce the Trust’s revenues and operating income.

Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (the “ADA”), all public accommodations are required to meet certain
federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons.  In addition to ADA work completed to date, the
Trust may be required to remove additional access barriers or make unplanned, substantial modifications to its Hotels
to comply with the ADA or to comply with other changes in governmental rules and regulations, which could reduce
the number of total available rooms, increase operating costs and have a negative impact on the Trust’s results of
operations.

In addition, our Hotels, like all real property, are subject to governmental regulations designed to protect the
environment.  If the Trust fails to comply with such laws and regulations, it may become subject to significant
liabilities, fines and/or penalties, which could adversely affect its financial condition and results of operations.

The Trust is also subject to laws governing our relationship with employees, including minimum or living wage
requirements, overtime, working conditions and work permit requirements. Additional increases to the state or federal
minimum wage rate, employee benefit costs including health care or other costs associated with employees could
increase expenses and result in lower operating margins.

Lastly, the Trust collects and maintains information relating to its guests for various business purposes, including
maintaining guest preferences to enhance the Trust’s customer service and for marketing and promotional
purposes.  The collection and use of personal data are governed by privacy laws and regulations.  Compliance with
applicable privacy regulations may increase the Trust’s operating costs and/or adversely impact its ability to service its
guests and market its products, properties and services to its guests. In addition, non-compliance with applicable
privacy regulations by the Trust (or in some circumstances non-compliance by third parties engaged by the Trust)
could result in fines or restrictions on its use or transfer of data. 

SEASONALITY OF THE HOTEL BUSINESS
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The Hotels’ operations historically have been somewhat seasonal.  The three southern Arizona hotels experience their
highest occupancy in the first fiscal quarter and, to a lesser extent, the fourth fiscal quarter.  The second fiscal quarter
tends to be the lowest occupancy period at the three southern Arizona hotels.  This seasonality pattern can be expected
to cause fluctuations in the Trust’s quarterly revenues.  The two hotels located in California and New Mexico
historically experience their most profitable periods during the second and third fiscal quarters (the summer season),
providing some balance to the general seasonality of the Trust’s hotel business.

The seasonal nature of the Trust’s business increases its vulnerability to risks such as labor force shortages and cash
flow issues.  Further, if an adverse event such as an actual or threatened terrorist attack, international conflict, data
breach, regional economic downturn or poor weather conditions should occur during the first or fourth fiscal quarters,
the adverse impact to the Trust’s revenues could likely be greater as a result of its southern Arizona seasonal business.

OTHER AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We also make available, free of charge, on our Internet website at www.innsuitestrust.com, our annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as
reasonably practicable after we file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”).

Item 1A.  RISK FACTORS

Not required for smaller reporting companies.

Item 1B.  UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not required for smaller reporting companies.

5

Edgar Filing: INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST - Form 10-K

9



Item 2.     PROPERTIES

The Trust maintains its administrative offices at the InnSuites Hotels Centre, at 1625 E. Northern Avenue, Suite 105,
Phoenix, Arizona 85020 in a space leased by the Trust from a third party.   All of the Hotels are operated as
InnSuites® Hotels, while four Hotels are also marketed as Best Western® Hotels.  All of the Hotels operate in the
following locations:

PROPERTY NUMBER OF
SUITES

YEAR OF

CONSTRUCTION
/

ADDITION

MOST RECENT

RENOVATION
(1)

PERCENT

OWNERSHIP

BY THE

TRUST

InnSuites Hotel and Suites Airport
Albuquerque Best Western Hotel 101 1975/1985 2004 50.85% (2)

InnSuites Hotel and Suites Tucson
Foothills Best Western Hotel 159 1981/1983 2005 36.74% (3)

InnSuites Hotels and Suites Yuma
Best
Western Hotel 166 1982/1984 2012 99.9% (4)

InnSuites Hotels and Suites Ontario
Airport
Best Western Hotel 150 1990 2012 44.39% (5)

InnSuites Hotels and Suites Tucson
St.
Mary's Hotel 267 1960/1971 2012 72.04% (6)

Total Suites 843

(1) The Trust defines a renovation as the remodeling of more than 10% of a property’s available suites.

(2) The Trust owns a direct 50.85% interest in the InnSuites Hotel and Suites Airport Albuquerque Best Western
Hotel.  

(3) The Partnership owns a 51.00% interest in the InnSuites Hotel and Suites Tucson Foothills Best Western
Hotel.  The Trust owns a 72.04% general partner interest in the Partnership.
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(4) The Trust holds a direct 99.9% ownership interest in the InnSuites Hotels and Suites Yuma Best Western Hotel.

(5) The Trust holds a direct 0.05% interest and the Partnership owns a 61.55% interest in the InnSuites Hotel and
Suites Ontario Airport Best Western Hotel.  The Trust owns a 72.04% general partner interest in the Partnership.

(6) The Partnership owns a 100% interest in the InnSuites Hotels and Suites Tucson St. Mary’s Hotel. The Trust owns
a 72.04% general partner interest in the Partnership.

See “Item 7 – Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – General” herein
for a discussion of occupancy rates at the Hotels.

See Note 9 to the Trust’s Consolidated Financial Statements – “Mortgage Notes Payable” herein for a discussion of
mortgages encumbering the Hotels.

See Note 18 to the Trust’s Consolidated Financial Statements – “Commitments and Contingencies” for a discussion of the
lease for our corporate headquarters.

Item 3.     LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Trust is not a party to, nor are any of its properties subject to, any material litigation or environmental regulatory
proceedings. See Note 18 to Trust’s Consolidated Financial Statements – “Commitments and Contingencies”.

Item 4.     MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None.
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PART II

Item 5.     MARKET FOR THE TRUST’S SHARES, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND TRUST
REPURCHASES OF SHARES

The Trust’s Shares of Beneficial Interest are traded on the NYSE MKT under the symbol “IHT.” On April 18, 2014, the
Trust had 9,068,055 shares outstanding.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices of the Trust’s Shares of
Beneficial Interest, as reported on the NYSE MKT, as well as dividends declared thereon:

Fiscal Year 2014 High Low Dividends
First Quarter $1.93 $1.55 -

Second Quarter $1.98 $1.41 -

Third Quarter $1.99 $1.25 -

Fourth Quarter $2.00 $1.45 $ 0.01

Fiscal Year 2013 High Low Dividends
First Quarter $2.41 $2.00 -

Second Quarter $2.35 $1.93 -

Third Quarter $2.35 $1.98 -

Fourth Quarter $2.20 $1.53 $ 0.01

The Trust intends to maintain a conservative dividend policy to facilitate the reduction of debt and internal growth.  In
fiscal years 2014 and 2013, the Trust paid dividends of $0.01 per share in the fourth quarter of each year.  The Trust
has paid dividends each fiscal year since its inception in 1971 and the Trust expects comparable cash dividends will
continue to be paid in the future.
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On January 2, 2001, the Board of Trustees approved a share repurchase program under Rule 10b-18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, for the purchase of up to 250,000 Partnership units and/or Shares of Beneficial
Interest in open market or privately negotiated transactions.  On September 10, 2002, August 18, 2005 and September
10, 2007, the Board of Trustees approved the purchase of up to 350,000 additional Partnership units and/or Shares of
Beneficial Interest in open market or privately negotiated transactions. Additionally, on January 5, 2009, September
15, 2009 and January 31, 2010, the Board of Trustees approved the purchase of up to 300,000, 250,000 and 350,000,
respectively, additional Partnership units and/or Shares of Beneficial Interest in open market or privately negotiated
transactions.  Acquired Shares of Beneficial Interest will be held in treasury and will be available for future
acquisitions and financings and/or for awards granted under the InnSuites Hospitality Trust 1997 Stock Incentive and
Option Plan.  During the three months ended January 31, 2014, the Trust acquired 7,874 Shares of Beneficial Interest
in open market transactions at an average price of $1.84 per share.  The average price paid includes brokerage
commissions. The Trust intends to continue repurchasing Shares of Beneficial Interest in compliance with applicable
legal and NYSE MKT requirements.  The Trust remains authorized to repurchase an additional 227,816 Partnership
units and/or Shares of Beneficial Interest pursuant to the publicly announced share repurchase program, which has no
expiration date.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period

Total
Number
of
Shares
Purchased

Average
Price
Paid
per
Share

Total
Number of
Shares
Purchased
as Part of
Publicly
Announced
Plans

Maximum
Number of
Shares
that May
Be Yet
Purchased
Under the
Plan

November 1 - November 30, 2013 3,574 $ 1.99 3,574 232,116
December 1 - December 31, 2013 - $ - - 232,116
January 1 - January 31, 2014 4,300 $ 1.70 4,300 227,816
Total 7,874 7,874

See Part III, Item 12 for information about our equity compensation plans.
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See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements – “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” for information
related to grants and restricted shares.

Item 6.     SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not required for smaller reporting companies.

 Item 7.    MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

We are engaged in the ownership and operation of hotel properties. At January 31, 2014, the Trust had five moderate
and full-service hotels with 843 hotel suites. Four of our Hotels are branded through membership agreements with
Best Western.  All five Hotels are trademarked as InnSuites Hotels. We are also involved in various operations
incidental to the operation of hotels, such as the operation of restaurants, meeting/banquet room rentals and the
operation of a reservation system.

Our operations consist of one reportable segment, hotel ownership, which derives its revenue from the operation of the
Hotels.  We provide management services for the Hotels and three hotels owned by affiliates of James F. Wirth, the
Trust’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.  We also provide trademark and licensing services to the Hotels, three
hotels owned by affiliates of Mr. Wirth and one unrelated hotel property.  In addition, we provide reservations
services for 3,100 unrelated hotel properties. 

Our results are significantly affected by occupancy and room rates at the Hotels, our ability to manage costs, and
changes in the number of available suites caused by acquisition and disposition activities.  Results are also
significantly impacted by overall economic conditions and conditions in the travel industry. Unfavorable changes in
these factors could negatively impact hotel room demand and pricing, which would reduce our profit margins on
rented suites.  Additionally, our ability to manage costs could be adversely impacted by significant increases in
operating expenses, resulting in lower operating margins.  Management expects greater demand and steady supply to
continue. However, either a further increase in supply or a further decline in demand could result in increased
competition, which could have an adverse effect on the revenue of the Hotels in their respective markets.
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Weak economic conditions, both generally and specifically in the travel industry, had a negative impact on our
operations in fiscal years 2014 and 2013.  We anticipate moderate improvement in these conditions during fiscal year
2015. We expect moderate improvements in the overall economic conditions to result in improved business and
leisure travel and relatively steady room rates.  We expect the major challenge for fiscal year 2015 to be the
continuation of strong competition for corporate leisure group and government business in the markets in which we
operate, which may affect our ability to increase room rates while maintaining market share.  We believe that we have
positioned the hotels to remain competitive through selective refurbishment, by carrying a relatively large number of
two-room suites at each location and by maintaining a robust guest internet access system.

To combat the weak economic conditions during fiscal years 2014 and 2013, we have significantly expanded
InnDependent Boutique Collection (IBC Hotels), a wholly owned subsidiary of InnSuites Hospitality Trust, which has
approximately 3,100 properties. During the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014, IBC Hotels formed a marketing
alliance with the Independent Lodging Industry Association (ILIA). We believe this new hotel network provides
independent hotel owners a competitive advantage against traditional franchised brands in their markets. The network
provides a booking system and loyalty program, IBC Hotels charges a 10% booking fee which increases the
independent hotel profits. InnDependent InnCentives, IBC’s loyalty program, allows hoteliers to benefit from guests
who frequently stay at IBC independent hotels. Revenue and expenses of IBC Hotels are not significant and not
separately recorded to date.

GENERAL

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

At January 31, 2014, through our sole general partner’s interest in the Partnership, we owned a 72.04% interest in the
Tucson, Arizona Hotel, direct 50.85% interest in the Albuquerque, New Mexico Hotel, and a 99.9% direct interest in
the Yuma, Arizona Hotel.  Additionally, at January 31, 2014, we, together with the Partnership, owned a 51.00%
interest in another hotel located in Tucson, Arizona and a 61.60% interest in a hotel located in Ontario, California. At
January 31, 2013, through our sole general partner’s interest in the Partnership, we owned a 72.04 % interest in the
Tucson, Arizona Hotel, direct 50.13% interest in the Albuquerque, New Mexico Hotel, and a 99.9% direct interest in
the Yuma, Arizona Hotel.  Additionally, at January 31, 2013, we together with the Partnership owned a 55.72%
interest in another hotel located in Tucson, Arizona and a 61.84% interest in a hotel located in Ontario, California. We
purchased 0 and 7,631 Partnership Class A units during the years ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  

8
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 Our expenses consist primarily of property taxes, insurance, corporate overhead, interest on mortgage debt,
professional fees, depreciation of the Hotels and hotel operating expenses. Hotel operating expenses consist primarily
of payroll, guest and maintenance supplies, marketing and utilities expenses.  Under the terms of its Partnership
Agreement, the Partnership is required to reimburse us for all such expenses.  Accordingly, management believes that
a review of the historical performance of the operations of the Hotels, particularly with respect to occupancy, which is
calculated as rooms sold divided by total rooms available, average daily rate (“ADR”), calculated as total room revenue
divided by number of rooms sold, and revenue per available room (“REVPAR”), calculated as total room revenue
divided by number of rooms available, is appropriate for understanding revenue from the Hotels.  In fiscal year 2014,
occupancy increased 1.06% to 65.65% from 64.59% in the prior year.  ADR decreased by $0.88 or 1.31% to $66.55 in
fiscal year 2014 from $67.43 in fiscal year 2013. The increased occupancy resulted in an increase in REVPAR of
$0.14 or 0.32% to $43.69 in fiscal year 2014 from $43.55 in fiscal year 2013.  The increased occupancy and continued
pressure on rates reflect the slowly improving economy and travel industry during fiscal year 2014. We have accepted
slightly reduced rates to increase our occupancy.

The following table shows certain historical financial and other information for the periods indicated:

For the Years

Ended January
31,
2014 2013

Occupancy 65.65% 64.59%
Average Daily Rate (ADR) $66.55 $67.43
Revenue Per Available Room (REVPAR) $43.69 $43.55

No assurance can be given that occupancy, ADR and REVPAR will not increase or decrease as a result of changes in
national or local economic or hospitality industry conditions.

We enter into transactions with certain related parties from time to time.  For information relating to such related party
transactions see the following:

• For a discussion of management and licensing agreements with certain related parties, see “Item 1 – Business –Management and Licensing Contracts.”

• For a discussion of guarantees of our mortgage notes payable by certain related parties, see Note 9 to ourConsolidated Financial Statements – “Mortgage Notes Payable.”

• 

For a discussion of our equity sales and restructuring agreements involving certain related parties, see Notes 3, 4 and
5 to our Consolidated Financial Statements – “Sale of Ownership Interests in Albuquerque Subsidiary,” “Sale of
Ownership Interests in Tucson Hospitality Properties Subsidiary,” and “Sale of Ownership Interests in Ontario
Hospitality Properties Subsidiary,” respectively.
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• For a discussion of other related party transactions, see Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements – “OtherRelated Party Transactions.”

Results of operations of the Trust for the year ended January 31, 2014 compared to the year ended January 31,
2013.

Overview

A summary of operating results for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2014 and 2013 is:

2014 2013 Change %
Change

Total Revenues $14,884,642 $14,977,619 $(92,977 ) (0.62% )
Operating Expenses (14,871,754) (15,100,697) 228,943 1.52 %
Operating Income (Loss) 12,888 (123,078 ) 135,966 110.47 %
Interest Income 5,610 8,937 (3,327 ) (37.23% )
Interest Expense (822,581 ) (961,709 ) 139,128 14.47 %
Income Tax Provision (37,148 ) - (37,148 ) (100.00%)
Consolidated Net Loss $(841,231 ) $(1,075,850 ) $234,619 21.81 %
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Our overall results in fiscal year 2014 were positively affected by our ability to control operating and interest
expenses.

Revenue:

For the twelve months ended January 31, 2014, we had total revenue of approximately $14,885,000 compared to
$14,978,000 for the twelve months ended January 31, 2013, a small decrease of approximately $93,000. The
combination of Room revenue, Other and Management and Trademark Fees were relatively flat for the twelve months
ended January 31, 2014 compared to the twelve months ended January 31, 2013. With continued pressure on the
economy, we realized a 7.1% decrease in Food and Beverage revenues during fiscal year 2014 as Food and Beverage
revenues were approximately $992,000 for fiscal year 2014 as compared to approximately $1,068,000 during fiscal
year 2013. During fiscal year 2015, we expect improvements in occupancy, modest improvements in rates and steady
Food and Beverage revenues.

Expenses:

Total expenses, including interest and taxes, of approximately $15,731,000 for the twelve months ended January 31,
2014 reflects a decrease of $331,000 compared to total expenses of approximately $16,062,000 for the twelve months
ended January 31, 2013.  The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in operating expenses and interest expense.

Room expense consisting of salaries and related taxes for property management, front office, housekeeping personnel,
reservation fees and room supplies decreased slightly to approximately $3,667,000 for the fiscal year ended January
31, 2014 compared to approximately $3,760,000 in the prior year period for approximately a $93,000, or 2.5%,
decrease in costs. The decrease directly corresponded to continued operational efficiencies gained.

Food and Beverage expenses included food and beverage costs, personnel and miscellaneous costs to provide banquet
events. For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014, Food and Beverage expenses were approximately $928,000 as
compared to approximately $1,007,000 for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2013, a savings of approximately
$79,000, or 7.9%. These costs decreased slightly during fiscal year 2014 as compared to fiscal year 2013, which
corresponded directly with the decrease in Food and Beverage revenues over the same period.

Telecommunications expense consisting of telephone and internet costs, decreased approximately $24,000, or 46%,
from $52,000 for the twelve months ended January 31, 2013 to approximately $28,000 for the twelve months ended
January 31, 2014. The decrease corresponded to the consolidation of telephone and internet service providers.
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General and administrative expenses include overhead charges for management, accounting, shareholder and legal
services.  General and administrative expenses of approximately $3,139,000 for the twelve months ended January 31,
2014 increased approximately $161,000 from approximately $2,978,000 for the twelve months ended January 31,
2013 primarily due to increased professional fees at the corporate office.

Sales and Marketing expense increased approximately $28,000, or 2.6%, from $1,084,000 for the twelve months
ended January 31, 2013 to approximately $1,112,000 for the twelve months ended January 31, 2014. The increase was
primarily due to the additional use of online booking agencies.

Repairs and Maintenance expenses decreased approximately $205,000 from approximately $1,431,000 reported for
the twelve months ended January 31, 2013 compared with approximately $1,226,000 for the twelve months ended
January 31, 2014. The decrease was due to additional cost savings initiatives around repairs and maintenance.

Hospitality expense increased approximately $29,000, or 3.6%, from $808,000 for the twelve months ended January
31, 2013 to approximately $837,000 for the twelve months ended January 31, 2014. The increase was primarily due to
additional product mix provided during the Hotels’ complimentary happy hour.

Utility expenses decreased approximately $62,000 from approximately $1,264,000 reported for the twelve months
ended January 31, 2013 compared with approximately $1,202,000 for the twelve months ended January 31, 2014.
After guests at our properties checkout, housekeeping staff has been instructed to turn up the thermostats in the rooms
to conserve energy. This policy has decreased our energy costs and management continues to look for additional
operational efficiencies.

Hotel Property Depreciation expense increased approximately $30,000, or 1.7%, from $1,754,000 for the twelve
months ended January 31, 2013 to approximately $1,784,000 for the twelve months ended January 31, 2014.

Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes, Insurance and Ground Rent expense decreased approximately $16,000, or
1.7%, from $954,000 for the twelve months ended January 31, 2013 to approximately $938,000 for the twelve months
ended January 31, 2014.
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Interest expenses were approximately $823,000 for the twelve months ended January 31, 2014, a decrease of
approximately $139,000 from the prior year total of approximately $962,000. Management continues to work with its
lenders to refinance the property loans. The decrease was primarily due to the restructuring of the Ontario mortgage
note payable.

Net Loss:

We had a consolidated net loss before income taxes of approximately $804,000 for the twelve months ended January
31, 2014, compared to approximately $1,076,000 in the prior year.  After deducting income tax provision of
approximately $37,000 and the net income attributable to non-controlling interest of approximately $181,000, we had
a net loss attributable to controlling interests of approximately $1,022,000 for fiscal year 2014, which represented
approximately $16,000 in additional loss attributable to controlling interests, as compared to the fiscal year 2013.
Basic and diluted net loss per share was $(0.12) for both the twelve months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview

Our principal source of cash to meet our cash requirements, including distributions to our shareholders, is our share of
the Partnership’s cash flow, quarterly distributions from the Albuquerque, New Mexico property and through the
Partnership and our direct ownership of the Yuma, Arizona property.  The Partnership’s principal source of revenue is
hotel operations for the one hotel property it owns and quarterly distributions from the Tucson, Arizona and Ontario,
California properties.  Our liquidity, including our ability to make distributions to our shareholders, will depend upon
our ability, and the Partnership’s ability, to generate sufficient cash flow from hotel operations and to service our debt.

Hotel operations are significantly affected by occupancy and room rates at the Hotels. We anticipate occupancy and
ADR will be improved in the coming year, capital improvements are expected to be similar from the prior year. As of
January 31, 2014, the Trust had approximately $583,000 drawn on its line of credit. Our credit line matures on June
23, 2014 and we are currently in discussions with the bank and anticipate a renewal of at least an additional year on
this line of credit. As of April 18, 2014, the outstanding balance on the line of credit was $600,000.

With the refinance or extension of two of our mortgage note payables which management expects to occur,
management believes that it will have enough cash on hand to meet all of our financial obligations as they become
due. Management is actively discussing with the bank an extension of the line of credit which matures on June 23,
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2014. In addition, our management is analyzing other strategic options available to us, including the refinancing of
another property or raising additional funds through additional non-controlling interest sales.

We anticipate a moderate improvement in the weak overall economic situation that negatively affected results in fiscal
year 2013 and 2014, which could result in higher revenues and operating margins.  Challenges in fiscal year 2015 are
expected to include continued competition for all types of business in the markets in which we operate and our ability
to maintain room rates while maintaining market share.

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled approximately $720,000 and $868,000 for the years ended January
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  The decrease in net cash provided by operating activities was due in part to an
approximate $96,000 increase in Accounts Receivable and an approximate $77,000 decrease in Accounts Payable.

Net cash used by investing activities totaled approximately $862,000 and $1,142,000 for the years ended January 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.  The decrease in net cash used in investing activities during fiscal year 2014 was due to
our decreased spending for capital expenditures beyond our 4% reserve for refurbishments and replacements that is set
aside annually as described below offset by the increase of restricted cash from January 31, 2013 to January 31, 2014.

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled approximately $44,000 for the year ended January 31, 2014,
compared to cash used in financing activities of approximately $216,000 for the year ended January 31, 2013. The
increase of approximately $260,000 was primarily due to a decrease of approximately $849,000 of principal payments
on mortgage notes payable, approximately $500,000 of proceeds from refinancing of mortgage notes payable in fiscal
year 2013 that did not occur in fiscal year 2014, a decrease of approximately $1,102,000 of proceeds from the sale of
non-controlling ownership interest in a subsidiary partially offset by a net increase in borrowings on notes with related
parties of approximately $361,000, comprised of approximately $3,035,000 of borrowing and approximately
$2,674,000 of repayments, an increase of borrowings of notes payable to banks of approximately $112,000, an
increase of approximately $315,000 of repurchase of subsidiary equity from a related party, a decrease of
approximately $133,000 to repurchase treasury stock and approximately $27,000 of deferred loan fees that occurred in
fiscal year 2013 but did not occur in fiscal year 2014.
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We continue to contribute to a Capital Expenditures Fund (the “Fund”) an amount equal to 4% of the InnSuites Hotels’
revenues from operation of the Hotels. The Fund is restricted by the mortgage lender for four of our properties.  As of
January 31, 2014, $114,337 was held in these accounts and is reported on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as
“Restricted Cash.”  The Fund is intended to be used for capital improvements to the Hotels and refurbishment and
replacement of furniture, fixtures and equipment.  During the twelve months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, the
Hotels spent approximately $761,000 and $1,265,000, respectively, for capital expenditures.  We consider the
majority of these improvements to be revenue producing.  Therefore, these amounts are capitalized and depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.  For fiscal year 2015 capital expenditures, we plan on spending approximately the
same amount as we did during fiscal year 2014. Repairs and maintenance were charged to expense as incurred and
approximated $1,226,000 and $1,431,000 for fiscal years 2014 and 2013, respectively.

We have minimum debt payments of approximately $13,192,000 and approximately $854,000 due during fiscal years
2015 and 2016, respectively. Minimum debt payments due during fiscal year 2015 include approximately $11,756,000
of mortgage notes payable and $583,000 drawn on our line of credit due during fiscal year 2015. Management is
actively working with our lenders and expects that we will be able to either extend or refinance our mortgage note
payables and extend our line of credit. 

We have a $600,000 line of credit that bears interest at the prime rate plus 1.0% per annum with a 6.0% rate floor, has
no financial covenants and matures on June 23, 2014. The line is secured by a junior security interest in the Yuma,
Arizona property and our trade receivables.  Mr. Wirth is a guarantor on the line of credit.  On January 31, 2014, the
Trust had drawn $583,000 under the line of credit. The largest outstanding balance on the line of credit during fiscal
year 2014 was $600,000.

In addition to our line of credit as of January 31, 2014, we had mortgage notes payable of approximately $18,747,000
outstanding with respect to the Hotels, approximately $436,000 in short term secured promissory notes with a credit
card merchant processor, approximately $331,000 in an unsecured demand/revolving line of credit/promissory note
and approximately $188,000 of secured promissory notes outstanding to unrelated third parties arising from the Shares
of Beneficial Interest and Partnership unit repurchases.

We may seek to negotiate additional credit facilities or issue debt instruments.  Any debt incurred or issued by us may
be secured or unsecured, long-term, medium-term or short-term, bear interest at a fixed or variable rate and be subject
to such other terms as we consider prudent.

SALE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN ALBUQUERQUE SUBSIDIARY
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On July 22, 2010, the Board of Trustees unanimously approved, with Mr. Wirth abstaining, for the Partnership to
enter into an agreement with Rare Earth Financial, LLC (“Rare Earth”), an affiliate of Mr. Wirth, to sell units in
Albuquerque Suite Hospitality, LLC (the “Albuquerque entity”), which owns and operates the Albuquerque, New
Mexico hotel property.  Under the agreement, Rare Earth agreed to either purchase or bring in other investors to
purchase at least 49% of the membership interests in the Albuquerque entity and the parties agreed to restructure the
operating agreement of the Albuquerque entity.  A total of 400 units were available for sale for $10,000 per unit, with
a two-unit minimum subscription.  On September 24, 2010, the parties revised the Amended and Restated Operating
Agreement to name Rare Earth as the administrative member of the Albuquerque entity in charge of the day-to-day
management.

On December 9, 2013, the Trust entered into an updated restructuring agreement with Rare Earth to allow for the sale
of additional interest units in the Albuquerque entity for $10,000 per unit. Under the updated restructuring agreement,
Rare Earth agreed to either purchase or bring in other investors to purchase up to 150 (and potentially up to 190 if the
overallotment is exercised) units. As of January 31, 2014 and per the updated restructuring agreement, the Trust
agreed to hold at least 50.1% of the outstanding limited partnership units in the Albuquerque entity, on a
post-transaction basis and intends to maintain this minimum ownership percentage through the purchase of units under
this offering. The Board of Trustees approved this restructuring on December 9, 2013.  The limited partnership
interests in the Albuquerque entity are allocated to three classes with differing cumulative discretionary priority
distribution rights through December 31, 2015 at which point it is anticipated the hotel will be owned free and
clear. Class A units are owned by unrelated third parties and have first priority for distributions. Class B units are
owned by the Trust and have second priority for distributions. Class C units are owned by Rare Earth or other
affiliates of Mr. Wirth and have the lowest priority for distributions from the Albuquerque entity. Priority distributions
of $700 per unit per year are cumulative until December 31, 2015; however, after December 31, 2015 Class A unit
holders continue to hold a preference on distributions over Class B and Class C unit holders.

If certain triggering events related to the Albuquerque entity occur prior to the payment of all accumulated
distributions to its members, such accumulated distributions will be paid out of any proceeds of the event before
general distribution of the proceeds to the members.  In the event that funds generated from a triggering event are
insufficient to pay the total amount of all such accumulated distributions owed to the members, all Class A members
will participate pro rata in the funds available for distribution to them until paid in full, then Class B, and then Class C.
After all investors have received their initial capital plus a 7% per annum simple return, any additional profits will be
allocated 50% to Rare Earth, with the remaining 50% allocated proportionately to all unit classes. Rare Earth received
a restructuring fee of $128,000, conditioned upon and arising from the sale of the first 100 units in the Albuquerque
entity following the December 31, 2013 restructuring. Assuming all 150 units are sold from the offering discussed
above, discretionary priority distributions to all Classes are projected to be approximately $385,000 annually through
December 31, 2015. The Albuquerque entity plans to use its best efforts to pay the discretionary priority distributions.
The Trust does not guarantee and is not otherwise obligated to pay the cumulative discretionary priority distributions.
InnSuites Hotels will continue to provide management, licensing and reservation services to the Albuquerque, New
Mexico property.

12

Edgar Filing: INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST - Form 10-K

23



 At January 31, 2014, the Albuquerque entity had sold 18.5 additional units to unrelated parties at $10,000 per unit
totaling $185,000 and the Trust purchased a net of 21 additional units at $10,000 per unit totaling $210,000 under the
updated restructuring agreement. As of January 31, 2014, the Trust holds a 50.85% ownership interest, or 223.50
Class B units, Mr. Wirth and his affiliates hold a 0.11% interest through Rare Earth, or 0.50 Class C units, and other
parties hold a 49.03% interest, or 215.50 Class A units. As of January 31, 2014, the Albuquerque entity has
discretionary Priority Return payments to unrelated unit holders of approximately $151,000, to the Trust of
approximately $156,000 and to Rare Earth of approximately $400 per year payable quarterly for calendar year 2015.

SALE OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS IN TUCSON HOSPITALITY PROPERTIES SUBSIDIARY

On February 17, 2011, the Partnership entered into a restructuring agreement with Rare Earth to allow for the sale of
non-controlling interest units in Tucson Hospitality Properties, LP (the “Tucson entity”), which operates the Tucson
Foothills hotel property, which was then wholly-owned by the Partnership.  Under the agreement, Rare Earth agreed
to either purchase or bring in other investors to purchase up to 250 units, which represents approximately 41% of the
outstanding limited partnership units in the Tucson entity, on a post-transaction basis, and the parties agreed to
restructure the limited partnership agreement of the Tucson entity. The Board of Trustees approved this restructuring
on January 31, 2011.

On October 1, 2013, the Partnership entered into an updated restructured limited partnership agreement with Rare
Earth to allow for the sale of additional interest units in the Tucson entity for $10,000 per unit.  Under the agreement,
Rare Earth agreed to either purchase or bring in other investors to purchase up to 160 (and potentially up to 200 if the
overallotment is exercised) units. As of October 31, 2013 and per the updated restructuring agreement, the Partnership
agreed to hold at least 50.1% of the outstanding limited partnership units in the Tucson entity, on a post-transaction
basis and intends to maintain this minimum ownership percentage through the purchase of units under this offering.
The Board of Trustees approved this restructuring on September 14, 2013.  The limited partnership interests in the
Tucson entity are allocated to three classes with differing cumulative discretionary priority distribution rights through
June 30, 2016. Class A units are owned by unrelated third parties and have first priority for distributions. Class B units
are owned by the Partnership and have second priority for distributions. Class C units are owned by Rare Earth or
other affiliates of Mr. Wirth and have the lowest priority for distributions from the Tucson entity. Priority distributions
of $700 per unit per year are cumulative until June 30, 2016; however, after June 30, 2016 Class A unit holders
continue to hold a preference on distributions over Class B and Class C unit holders.

If certain triggering events related to the Tucson entity occur prior to the payment of all accumulated distributions to
its members, such accumulated distributions will be paid out of any proceeds of the event before general distribution
of the proceeds to the members.  In the event that funds generated from a triggering event are insufficient to pay the
total amount of all such accumulated distributions owed to the members, all Class A members will participate pro rata
in the funds available for distribution to them until paid in full, then Class B, and then Class C. After all investors have
received their initial capital plus a 7% per annum simple return, any additional profits will be allocated 50% to Rare
Earth, with the remaining 50% allocated proportionately to all unit classes.  Rare Earth will receive a restructuring fee
of $128,000, conditioned upon and arising from the sale of the first 100 units in the Tucson entity following the

Edgar Filing: INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST - Form 10-K

24



October 1, 2013 restructuring. Assuming all 160 units are sold from the offering discussed above, discretionary
priority distributions to all Classes are projected to be approximately $540,000 annually through June 30, 2016. The
Tucson entity plans to use its best efforts to pay the discretionary priority distributions. The Trust does not guarantee
and is not otherwise obligated to pay the cumulative discretionary priority distributions. InnSuites Hotels will continue
to provide management, licensing and reservation services to the Tucson, Arizona property.

As of January 31, 2014, the Trust had sold its entire 11 units in the Tucson entity to the Partnership. At January 31,
2014, the Tucson entity had sold 108.50 units to unrelated parties at $10,000 per unit totaling $1,085,000 and the
Partnership purchased a net of 54 additional units at $10,000 per unit totaling $540,000 under the updated restructured
limited partnership agreement. As of January 31, 2014, the Trust does not hold any interest in the Tucson entity, the
Partnership holds a 51.00% ownership interest, or 395 Class B units, Mr. Wirth and his affiliates hold a 1.55%
interest, or 12 Class C units, and other parties hold a 47.45% interest, or 367.50 Class A units. As of January 31, 2014,
the Tucson entity has discretionary payments to unrelated unit holders of approximately $257,000, to the Partnership
of approximately $277,000 and to Rare Earth of approximately $8,000 per year payable quarterly for calendar years
2015 and 2016.
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SALE OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS IN ONTARIO HOSPITALITY PROPERTIES SUBSIDIARY

On February 29, 2012, the Trust and Partnership entered into a restructuring agreement with Rare Earth to allow for
the sale of minority interest units in Ontario Hospitality Properties, LP (the “Ontario entity”) for $10,000 per unit, which
operates the Ontario hotel property, which was then wholly-owned by the Partnership.  Under the agreement, Rare
Earth agreed to either purchase or bring in other investors to purchase up to 250 units, which represents approximately
49% of the outstanding partnership units in the Ontario entity, on a post-transaction basis, and the parties agreed to
restructure the limited partnership agreement of the Ontario entity. The Board of Trustees approved this restructuring
on February 1, 2012.

Under the restructured limited partnership agreement, Rare Earth became a general partner of the Ontario entity along
with the Trust and Partnership.  The limited partnership interests in the Ontario entity are allocated to three classes
with differing cumulative discretionary priority distribution rights through March 31, 2017. Class A units are owned
by unrelated third parties and have first priority for distributions. Class B units are owned by the Trust and Partnership
and have second priority for distributions. Class C units are owned by Rare Earth or other affiliates of Mr. Wirth and
have the lowest priority for distributions from the Ontario entity. Priority distributions of $700 per unit per year are
cumulative until March 31, 2017; however, after March 31, 2017 Class A unit holders continue to hold a preference
on distributions over Class B and Class C unit holders.

If certain triggering events related to the Ontario entity occur prior to the payment of all accumulated distributions to
its members, such accumulated distributions will be paid out of any proceeds of the event before general distribution
of the proceeds to the members.  In the event that funds generated from a triggering event are insufficient to pay the
total amount of all such accumulated distributions owed to the members, all Class A members will participate pro rata
in the funds available for distribution to them until paid in full, then Class B, and then Class C. After all investors have
received their initial capital plus a 7% per annum simple return, any additional profits will be allocated 50% to Rare
Earth, with the remaining 50% allocated proportionately to all unit classes. Rare Earth also received a formation fee of
$320,000, conditioned upon and arising from the sale of the first 160 units in the Ontario entity. Priority distributions
to all Classes are projected to be approximately $446,660 for each of the calendar years 2015 through 2017. The
Ontario entity is required to use its best efforts to pay the priority distributions. The Trust does not guarantee and is
not otherwise obligated to pay the cumulative priority distributions. InnSuites Hotels will continue to provide
management, licensing and reservation services to the Ontario, California property.

As of January 31, 2014, the Partnership holds a 61.55% ownership interest, or 392.70 Class B units, in the Ontario
entity, the Trust holds a 0.05% ownership interest, 0.30 Class B units, Mr. Wirth and his affiliates hold a 1.57%
interest through Rare Earth, or 10 Class C units, and other parties hold a 36.83% interest, or 235 Class A units. As of
January 31, 2014 the Ontario entity has discretionary Priority Return payments to unrelated unit holders of
approximately $165,000, to the Trust of approximately $200, to the Partnership of approximately $275,000 and to
Rare Earth of approximately $7,000 per year payable quarterly for calendar year 2015, 2016 and 2017.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CONTINUED LISTING STANDARDS OF NYSE MKT

On January 8, 2013, the Trust received a letter from the NYSE MKT LLC (f/k/a AMEX) (the "NYSE MKT")
informing the Trust that the staff of the NYSE MKT’s Corporate Compliance Department has determined that the
Trust is not in compliance with Section 1003(a)(ii) of the NYSE MKT Company Guide due to the Trust having
stockholders' equity of less than $4.0 million and losses from continuing operations in three of its four most recent
fiscal years.

The Trust was afforded the opportunity to submit a plan of compliance to the NYSE MKT and submitted its plan on
February 5, 2013. On March 21, 2013, the NYSE MKT notified the Trust that it accepted the Trust’s plan of
compliance and granted the Trust an extension until April 30, 2014 to regain compliance with the continued listing
standards.

On May 2, 2013, the Trust received another letter from the NYSE MKT informing the Trust that the Trust is not in
compliance with an additional continued listing standard of the NYSE MKT, Section 1003(a)(iii) of the NYSE MKT
Company Guide, due to the Trust having stockholders’ equity of less than $6.0 million and net losses in five
consecutive fiscal years as of January 31, 2013. The plan submitted in response to the first letter received increased
stockholders’ equity in excess of $6.0 million before the April 30, 2014 deadline; therefore, the Trust was not required
to submit an additional plan to regain compliance with the continued listing standards.

The Trust is undertaking efforts, as outlined in its plan, to regain compliance with the NYSE MKT continued listing
standards.

On December 16, 2013, the Trust requested an extension of the plan period. Based on a review of information
provided by the Trust, on January 10, 2014, the NYSE MKT granted the Trust an extension of time to regain
compliance with the NYSE MKT continued listing standards until July 8, 2014. The Trust will be subject to periodic
review by the NYSE MKT’s staff during this extension period. Failure to make progress consistent with the plan or to
regain compliance with continued listing standards by the end of the extension period could result in the Trust being
delisted from the NYSE MKT.
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

The following non-GAAP presentations of earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) and
funds from operations (“FFO”) are made to assist our investors in evaluating our operating performance.

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as earnings before minority interest, interest expense, amortization of loan costs, interest
income, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, and non-controlling interests in the Trust. We present Adjusted
EBITDA because we believe these measurements (a) more accurately reflect the ongoing performance of our hotel
assets and other investments, (b) provide more useful information to investors as indicators of our ability to meet our
future debt payment and working capital requirements, and (c) provide an overall evaluation of our financial
condition. Adjusted EBITDA as calculated by us may not be comparable to Adjusted EBITDA reported by other
companies that do not define Adjusted EBITDA exactly as we define the term. Adjusted EBITDA does not represent
cash generated from operating activities determined in accordance with GAAP and should not be considered as an
alternative to (a) GAAP net income or loss as an indication of our financial performance or (b) GAAP cash flows from
operating activities as a measure of our liquidity.

A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net loss attributable to controlling interests for the twelve months ended
January 31, 2014 and 2013 follows:

Twelve Months Ended

January 31,
2014 2013

Net loss attributable to controlling interests $(1,021,823) $(1,006,145)
Add back:
Depreciation 1,783,595 1,754,289
Interest expense 822,581 961,709
Non-controlling interest 180,592 (69,705 )
Taxes 37,148 -
Less:
Interest income 5,610 8,937
ADJUSTED EBITDA $1,796,483 $1,631,211

FFO is calculated on the basis defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”), which
is net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders, computed in accordance with GAAP, excluding gains or
losses on sales of properties, asset impairment adjustments, and extraordinary items as defined by GAAP, plus
depreciation and amortization of real estate assets, and after adjustments for unconsolidated joint ventures and
non-controlling interests in the operating partnership. NAREIT developed FFO as a relative measure of performance
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of an equity REIT to recognize that income-producing real estate historically has not depreciated on the basis
determined by GAAP. The Trust is an unincorporated Ohio real estate investment trust; however, the Trust is not a
real estate investment trust for federal taxation purposes. Management uses this measurement to compare itself to
REITs with similar depreciable assets. We consider FFO to be an appropriate measure of our ongoing normalized
operating performance. We compute FFO in accordance with our interpretation of standards established by NAREIT,
which may not be comparable to FFO reported by other companies that either do not define the term in accordance
with the current NAREIT definition or interpret the NAREIT definition differently than us. FFO does not represent
cash generated from operating activities as determined by GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to (a)
GAAP net income or loss as an indication of our financial performance or (b) GAAP cash flows from operating
activities as a measure of our liquidity, nor is it indicative of funds available to satisfy our cash needs, including our
ability to make cash distributions. However, to facilitate a clear understanding of our historical operating results, we
believe that FFO should be considered along with our net income or loss and cash flows reported in the consolidated
financial statements.

A reconciliation of FFO to net loss attributable to controlling interests for twelve months ended January 31, 2014 and
2013 follows:
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Twelve Months Ended

January 31,
2014 2013

Net loss attributable to controlling interest $(1,021,823) $(1,006,145)
Add back:
Loss on Disposal of Assets 15,010 -
Depreciation 1,783,595 1,754,289
Non-controlling interest 180,592 (69,705 )
FFO $957,374 $678,439

FUTURE POSITIONING

In viewing the hotel industry cycles, the Board of Trustees determined that 2008 may have been the high point of the
current hotel industry cycle and further determined it was appropriate to actively seek buyers for our properties.  We
engaged the services of several hotel brokers and began independently advertising our Hotels for sale.  We continue to
independently advertise our Hotels for sale, including on our website (www.suitehotelsrealty.com).

The table below lists our hotel properties, their respective book values, mortgage balance and the listed asking price
for the hotel properties.

Hotel Property Net Book
Value

Mortgage
Balance

Listed
Asking
Price

InnSuites Hotels and Suites Airport
Albuquerque Best Western Hotel $1,253,496 $1,126,983 $5,900,000

InnSuites Hotels and Suites Ontario Airport
Best Western Hotel 5,668,413 5,983,480 15,900,000

InnSuites Hotels and Suites Tucson
Foothills Best Western Hotel 4,022,139 1,241,111 12,500,000

InnSuites Hotels and Suites Tucson
St. Mary's Hotel 7,490,789 5,039,946 10,500,000

InnSuites Hotels and Suites Yuma
Best Western Hotel 5,237,878 5,355,051 14,000,000

$23,672,715 $18,746,571 $58,800,000
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The listed asking price is the amount at which we would sell each of the Hotels and is based on the original listed
selling price adjusted to reflect recent hotel sales in the Hotels’ areas of operation and current earnings of each of the
Hotels. The listed asking price is not based on appraisals of the properties.

We may be unable to realize the listed sales price for the individual Hotel properties or to sell them at all. However,
we believe that the listed values are reasonable based on local market conditions and comparable sales. Changes in
market conditions have in part resulted, and may in the future result, in our changing one or all of the listed asking
prices.

Our long-term strategic plan is to obtain the full benefit of our real estate equity and to migrate our focus from a hotel
owner to a hospitality service company by expanding our trademark license, management, reservation, and advertising
services, through InnDependent Boutique Collection (IBC Hotels), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Trust. As of
January 31, 2013, IBC Hotels had approximately 1,000 hotels and has expanded its membership to 3,100 hotels as of
January 31, 2014. As of April 15, 2014, IBC Hotels has approximately 2,600 hotels. During the fiscal year ending
January 31, 2014 IBC Hotels formed a marketing alliance with the Independent Lodging Industry Association (ILIA).
Revenues and expenses of IBC Hotels are not significant and not separately recorded.

We are planning significant expansion of IBC Hotels during the next couple of fiscal years as we concentrate our sales
and marketing efforts towards consumers.  We anticipate the IBC Hotels sales and marketing efforts to increase our
revenues and decrease our consolidated net loss over the next couple of fiscal years. For each reservation, IBC Hotels
receives a 10% transactional fee plus reimbursement of our credit card processing fees associated with the reservation.
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This plan is similar to strategies followed by internationally diversified hotel industry leaders, which over the last
several years have reduced real estate holdings and concentrated on hospitality services. We began our long-term
corporate strategy when we relinquished our REIT income tax status in January 2004, which had previously prevented
us from providing management services to hotels. In June 2004, we acquired our trademark license and management
agreements and began providing management, trademark and reservations services to our Hotels.

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

For information on the Trust’s Share Repurchase Program, see Part II, Item 5. “MARKET FOR THE TRUST’S
SHARES, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND TRUST REPURCHASES OF SHARES.”

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Other than lease commitments and legal contingencies incurred in the normal course of business, we do not have any
off-balance sheet financing arrangements or liabilities.  We do not have any majority-owned or controlled subsidiaries
that are not included in our consolidated financial statements.  

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

We believe that the policies we follow for the valuation of our hotel properties, which constitute the majority of our
assets, are our most critical policies.  The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) has issued authoritative
guidance related to the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, codified in ASC Topic 360-10-35, which we apply
to determine when it is necessary to test an asset for recoverability.  On an events and circumstances basis, we review
the carrying value of our hotel properties.  We will record an impairment loss and reduce the carrying value of a
property when anticipated undiscounted future cash flows and the current market value of the property do not support
its carrying value.  In cases where we do not expect to recover the carrying cost of hotel properties held for use, we
will reduce the carrying value to the fair value of the hotel, as determined by a current appraisal or other acceptable
valuation methods. We did not recognize an impairment loss in fiscal years 2014 or 2013.  As of January 31, 2014,
our management does not believe that the carrying values of any of our hotel properties are impaired. For recent
accounting pronouncements, see Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements – “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies”.

INFLATION
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We rely entirely on the performance of the Hotels and InnSuites Hotels’ ability to increase revenue to keep pace with
inflation.  Operators of hotels in general and InnSuites Hotels in particular can change room rates quickly, but
competitive pressures may limit InnSuites Hotels’ ability to raise rates as fast as or faster than inflation.  Revenue per
available room increased $2.88 in the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Form 10-K, including statements containing the phrases “believes,” “intends,” “expects,”
“anticipates,” “predicts,” “projects,” “will be,” “should be,” “looking ahead,” “may” or similar words, constitute “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  We intend that such forward-looking statements be subject to the safe harbors
created by such Acts.  These forward-looking statements include statements regarding our intent, belief or current
expectations, those of our Board of Trustees or our officers in respect of (i) the declaration or payment of dividends;
(ii) the leasing, management or operation of the Hotels; (iii) the adequacy of reserves for renovation and
refurbishment; (iv) our financing plans; (v) our position regarding investments, acquisitions, developments,
financings, conflicts of interest and other matters; (vi) our plans and expectations regarding future sales of hotel
properties; and (vii) trends affecting our or any Hotel’s financial condition or results of operations.

These forward-looking statements reflect our current views in respect of future events and financial performance, but
are subject to many uncertainties and factors relating to the operations and business environment of the Hotels that
may cause our actual results to differ materially from any future results expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements.  Examples of such uncertainties include, but are not limited to:

● local, national or international economic and business conditions, including, without limitation, conditions that may,
or may continue to, affect public securities markets generally, the hospitality industry or the markets in which we
operate or will operate;

● fluctuations in hotel occupancy rates;

● changes in room rental rates that may be charged by InnSuites Hotels in response to market rental rate changes or
otherwise;
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● seasonality of our business;

● our ability to sell any of our Hotels at market value, listed sale price or at all;

● interest rate fluctuations;

● changes in governmental regulations, including federal income tax laws and regulations;

● competition;

● any changes in our financial condition or operating results due to acquisitions or dispositions of hotel properties;

● insufficient resources to pursue our current strategy;

● concentration of our investments in the InnSuites Hotels® brand;

● loss of membership contracts;

● real estate and hospitality market conditions;

● hospitality industry factors;

● our ability to carry out our strategy, including our strategy regarding IBC Hotels;
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● the Trust’s ability to remain listed on the NYSE MKT;

● effectiveness of the Trust’s software program;

● our ability to meet present and future debt service obligations;

● our ability to extend our line of credit;

● our inability to refinance or extend the maturity of indebtedness at, prior to, or after the time it matures;

● terrorist attacks or other acts of war;

● outbreaks of communicable diseases;

● natural disasters;

● data breaches; and

● loss of key personnel.

We do not undertake any obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise.  Pursuant to Section 21E(b)(2)(E) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, the qualifications set forth hereinabove are inapplicable to any forward-looking statements in this
Form 10-K relating to the operations of the Partnership.

Item 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
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Not required for smaller reporting companies.

Item 8.     FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST

LIST OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

The following consolidated financial statements of InnSuites Hospitality Trust are included in Item 8:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  20

Consolidated Balance Sheets – January 31, 2014 and 2013      21

Consolidated Statements of Operations – Years Ended January 31, 2014 and 2013      22

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity – Years Ended January 31, 2014 and 2013      23

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows – Years Ended January 31, 2014 and 2013      24

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – Years Ended January 31, 2014 and 2013      25

The following financial statement schedules of InnSuites Hospitality Trust are included in Item 8:

Schedule III – Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation  40

Schedule IV – Mortgage Loans on Real Estate      42

All other schedules are omitted, as the information is not required or is otherwise furnished.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Shareholders and Board of Trustees of

InnSuites Hospitality Trust

Phoenix, AZ

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of InnSuites Hospitality Trust and subsidiaries (the
“Trust”) as of January 31, 2014 and January 31, 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years ended January 31, 2014 and January 31, 2013. In connection with
our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited the financial statement schedules listed in Item
15(a). These consolidated financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the Trust’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Trust is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration
of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements and schedules. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of InnSuites Hospitality Trust at January 31, 2014, and January 31, 2013, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

/s/ Semple, Marchal & Cooper, LLP
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Phoenix, AZ

April 21, 2014
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INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

JANUARY 31,
2014 2013

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $395,903 $493,953
Restricted Cash 114,337 13,783
Accounts Receivable, including $55,873 and $81,176 from related parties and net of
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of $23,593 and $34,415, as of January 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively

644,566 568,186

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 384,059 268,399
Total Current Assets 1,538,865 1,344,321
Hotel Properties, net 23,672,715 24,686,780
Property, Plant and Equipment, net 89,348 112,977
Deferred Finance Costs and Other Assets 107,575 137,884
TOTAL ASSETS $25,408,503 $26,281,962

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $2,221,638 $2,298,497
Current Portion of Mortgage Notes Payable 11,753,088 1,208,365
Current Portion of Notes Payable to Banks 1,018,925 450,000
Line of Credit - Related Party 331,390 -
Current Portion of Other Notes Payable 81,461 189,799
Total Current Liabilities 15,406,502 4,146,661
Mortgage Notes Payable 6,993,483 18,746,559
Other Notes Payable 106,106 162,457

TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,506,091 23,055,677

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (SEE NOTE 18)

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Shares of Beneficial Interest, without par value, unlimited authorization; 16,822,746
and 16,804,746 shares issued and 8,341,899 and 8,375,207 shares outstanding at
January 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively

14,024,668 14,940,048

Treasury Stock, 8,480,847 and 8,429,539 shares held at January 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively (11,973,459) (11,877,886)

TOTAL TRUST SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2,051,209 3,062,162
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 851,203 164,123
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TOTAL EQUITY 2,902,412 3,226,285
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $25,408,503 $26,281,962

See accompanying notes to

consolidated financial statements
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INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

YEARS ENDED
JANUARY 31,
2014 2013

REVENUE
Room $13,442,254 $13,436,362
Food and Beverage 991,867 1,068,025
Management and Trademark Fees, including $189,299 and $248,234 from related
parties for 2014 and 2013, respectively 194,605 262,662

Other 255,916 210,570
TOTAL REVENUE 14,884,642 14,977,619

OPERATING EXPENSES
Room 3,667,492 3,759,867
Food and Beverage 927,887 1,006,975
Telecommunications 28,243 51,607
General and Administrative 3,139,064 2,977,901
Sales and Marketing 1,111,912 1,083,503
Repairs and Maintenance 1,225,997 1,430,524
Hospitality 837,371 808,064
Utilities 1,202,371 1,263,748
Hotel Property Depreciation 1,783,595 1,754,289
Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes, Insurance and Ground Rent 938,345 954,232
Other 9,477 9,987
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 14,871,754 15,100,697
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 12,888 (123,078 )
Interest Income 5,610 8,937
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 5,610 8,937
Interest on Mortgage Notes Payable 757,316 909,366
Interest on Notes Payable to Banks 26,408 17,613
Interest on Other Notes Payable 28,496 34,730
Interest on Line of Credit - Related Party 10,361 -
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE 822,581 961,709
CONSOLIDATED NET LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX PROVISION (804,083 ) (1,075,850 )
Income Tax Provision (37,148 ) -
CONSOLIDATED NET LOSS $(841,231 ) $(1,075,850 )
LESS: NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST $180,592 $(69,705 )

NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONTROLLING INTERESTS $(1,021,823 ) $(1,006,145 )
NET LOSS PER SHARE – BASIC AND DILUTED $(0.12 ) $(0.12 )
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING - 8,368,416 8,415,542
BASIC AND DILUTED
CASH DIVIDENDS PER SHARE $0.01 $0.01
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 See accompanying notes to

consolidated financial statements
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INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2014 and 2013

Total Equity

Shares of Beneficial
Interest Treasury Stock Trust

Shareholder

Non-

Controlling
Shares Amount Shares Amount Equity Interest Amount

Balance, January
31, 2102 8,442,338 $14,646,261 8,344,408 $(11,682,575) $2,963,686 $181,901 $3,145,587

Net Loss - (1,006,145 ) - - (1,006,145) (69,705 ) (1,075,850)
Dividends - (83,846 )  -  - (83,846 )  - (83,846 )
Purchase of
Treasury Stock (85,131 ) - 85,131 (195,311 ) (195,311 ) - (195,311 )

Repurchase of
Partnership Units - (16,025 ) - - (16,025 ) - (16,025 )

Shares of
Beneficial
Interest Issued
for Services
Rendered

18,000 39,600 - - 39,600  - 39,600

Sales of
Ownership
Interests in
Subsidiary

 - 1,672,342  -  - 1,672,342 546,252 2,218,594

Repurchase of
Ownership
Interest in
Subsidiary

 - (305,734 )  -  - (305,734 ) (9,266 ) (315,000 ) 

Distribution to
Non-Controlling
Interests

 - (14,875 )  -  - (14,875 ) (476,589 ) (491,464 ) 

Reallocation of
Non-Controlling
Interests

 - 8,470  - - 8,470 (8,470 )  -

Balance, January
31, 2013 8,375,207 14,940,048 8,429,539 (11,877,886) 3,062,162 164,123 3,226,285

Net (Loss)
Income - (1,021,823 )  - - (1,021,823) 180,592 (841,231 )

Dividends - (83,449 )  -  - (83,449 )  - (83,449 )
(51,308 ) - 51,308 (95,573 ) (95,573 ) - (95,573 )
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Purchase of
Treasury Stock
Shares of
Beneficial
Interest Issued
for Services
Rendered

18,000 30,960 - - 30,960  - 30,960

Sales of
Ownership
Interests in
Subsidiary

 - (52,880 ) - - (52,880 ) 1,169,816 1,116,936

Distribution to
Non-Controlling
Interests

 -  - - -  - (462,778 ) (462,778 ) 

Reallocation of
Non-Controlling
Interests and
Other

 - 211,812 - - 211,812 (200,550 ) 11,262

Balance, January
31, 2014 8,341,899 $14,024,668 8,480,847 $(11,973,459) $2,051,209 $851,203 $2,902,412

See accompanying notes to

consolidated financial statements
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INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED

JANUARY 31, 
2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Consolidated Net Loss $ (841,231 ) $ (1,075,850 )
Adjustments to Reconcile Consolidated Net Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Stock-Based Compensation 30,960 39,600
Provision for Uncollectible Receivables (10,822 ) (3,745 )
Hotel Property Depreciation 1,783,595 1,754,289
Loss on Disposal of Assets 15,010 1,956
Amortization of Deferred Loan Fees 59,400 91,988
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets (144,751 ) (120,001 )
Accounts Receivable (95,558 ) 55,475
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses (76,859 ) 124,436
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 719,744 868,148

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Improvements and Additions to Hotel Properties (761,433 ) (1,264,878 )
Change in Restricted Cash (100,554 ) 123,025
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (861,987 ) (1,141,853 )

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Deferred Loan Fees - (27,285 )
Principal Payments on Mortgage Notes Payable (1,208,352 ) (2,057,032 )
Proceeds from Refinancing of Mortgage Notes Payable - 500,000
Payments on Notes Payable to Banks (1,805,313 ) (1,812,432 )
Borrowings on Notes Payable to Banks 2,374,238 2,262,432
Payments on Line of Credit -Related Party (2,673,866 ) -
Borrowings on Line of Credit - Related Party 3,035,256 -
Proceeds from Sale of Non-Controlling Ownership Interest in
Subsidiary 1,116,936 2,218,594

Repurchase of Subsidiary Equity from Related Party - (315,000 )
Distributions to Minority Interest Holders (462,778 ) (491,464 )
Repurchase of Partnership Units - (525 )
Repurchase of Treasury Stock (54,430 ) (187,311 )
Payment of Dividends (83,449 ) (83,846 )
Payments on Other Notes Payable (194,049 ) (221,897 )
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 44,193 (215,766 )
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NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (98,050 ) (489,471 )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
YEAR 493,953 983,424

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 395,903 $ 493,953

See Note 17 for Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

See accompanying notes to

consolidated financial statements
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INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2014 and 2013

1.  NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

As of January 31, 2014, InnSuites Hospitality Trust (the “Trust”, “we” or “our”) owns interests in directly and through a
partnership interest, five hotels with an aggregate of 843 suites in Arizona, southern California and New Mexico (the
“Hotels”).  The Hotels operate under the trade name “InnSuites Hotels.”

Full service hotels often contain upscale full-service facilities with a large volume of full service accommodations,
on-site full service restaurant(s), and a variety of on-site amenities such as swimming pools, a health club, children’s
activities, ballrooms and on-site conference facilities. Moderate or limited service hotels are small to medium-sized
hotel establishments that offer a limited amount of on-site amenities. Most moderate or limited service establishments
may still offer full service accommodations but lack leisure amenities such as an on-site restaurant or a swimming
pool. We consider one of our Tucson, Arizona hotels and our hotel located in Albuquerque, New Mexico a moderate
or limited service establishment. All of our other properties are full service hotels.

The Trust is the sole general partner of RRF Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership (the “Partnership”),
and owned 72.04% interest in the Partnership as of January 31, 2014 and 2013. The Trust’s weighted average
ownership for the years ended January 31, 2014 and 2013 was 72.04%. As of January 31, 2014, the Partnership owned
100% of one InnSuites® hotel located in Tucson, Arizona, owned a 51.00% interest in another InnSuites® hotel
located in Tucson, Arizona, and together with the Trust controlled a 61.60% interest in an InnSuites® hotel located in
Ontario, California.  The Trust owns and operates a Yuma, Arizona hotel property directly, which it acquired from the
Partnership on January 31, 2005, and owns a direct 50.85% interest in an InnSuites® hotel located in Albuquerque,
New Mexico.

Under certain management agreements, InnSuites Hotels, our subsidiary, manages the Hotels’ daily operations.  The
Trust also provides the use of the “InnSuites” trademark to the Hotels through wholly-owned InnSuites Hotels.  All such
expenses and reimbursements between the Trust, InnSuites Hotels and the Partnership have been eliminated in
consolidation.

InnDependent Boutique Collection (IBC Hotels), a wholly owned subsidiary of InnSuites Hospitality Trust, has
approximately 3,100 properties. During the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014 IBC Hotels formed a marketing
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alliance with the Independent Lodging Industry Association (ILIA). Revenues and expenses of IBC Hotels are not
significant and not separately recorded.

PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

The Partnership Agreement of the Partnership provides for the issuance of two classes of Limited Partnership units,
Class A and Class B.  Class A and Class B Partnership units are identical in all respects, except that each Class A
Partnership unit is convertible into one newly-issued Share of Beneficial Interest of the Trust at any time at the option
of the particular limited partner.  The Class B Partnership units may only become convertible, each into one
newly-issued Share of Beneficial Interest of the Trust, with the approval of the Board of Trustees, in its sole
discretion.  On January 31, 2014 and 2013, 286,034 Class A Partnership units were issued and outstanding,
representing 2.17% of the total Partnership units.  Additionally, as of both January 31, 2014 and 2013, 3,407,938
Class B Partnership units were outstanding to James Wirth, the Trust’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Mr.
Wirth’s affiliates. If all of the Class A and B Partnership units were converted on January 31, 2014, the limited partners
in the Partnership would receive 3,693,972 Shares of Beneficial Interest of the Trust.  As of January 31, 2014 and
2013, the Trust owns 9,517,545 general partner units in the Partnership, representing 72.04% of the total Partnership
units.

LIQUIDITY

Our principal source of cash to meet our cash requirements, including distributions to our shareholders, is our share of
the Partnership’s cash flow, quarterly distributions from the Albuquerque, New Mexico property, and through the
Partnership and our direct ownership of the Yuma, Arizona property.  The Partnership’s principal source of revenue is
hotel operations for the one hotel property it owns and quarterly distributions from the Tucson, Arizona and Ontario,
California properties.  Our liquidity, including our ability to make distributions to our shareholders, will depend upon
our ability and the Partnership’s ability to generate sufficient cash flow from hotel operations.

Hotel operations are significantly affected by occupancy and room rates at the Hotels. We anticipate occupancy and
ADR will be improved in the coming year, capital improvements are expected to be similar from the prior year. As of
January 31, 2014, the Trust had $583,000 drawn on our $600,000 line of credit. Our credit line matures on June 23,
2014 and we are currently in discussions with the bank and anticipate a renewal of at least an additional year on this
line of credit. As of April 18, 2014, the outstanding balance on the line of credit was $600,000.
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With the expected continued availability of the $600,000 bank line of credit which management expects to timely
renew, the refinance or extension of two of our mortgage note payables which management expects to occur,
management believes that it will have enough cash on hand to meet all of our financial obligations as they become
due. Management is actively discussing with the bank an extension of the line of credit. In addition, our management
is analyzing other strategic options available to us, including the refinancing of another property or raising additional
funds through additional non-controlling interest sales.

There can be no assurance that we will be successful in raising additional or replacement funds, or that these funds
may be obtainable on terms that are favorable to us. If we are unable to raise additional or replacement funds, we may
be required to sell certain of our assets to meet our liquidity needs, which may not be on terms that are favorable.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

As sole general partner of the Partnership, the Trust exercises unilateral control over the Partnership, and the Trust
owns all of the issued and outstanding classes of shares of InnSuites Hotels. Therefore, the financial statements of the
Partnership and InnSuites Hotels are consolidated with the Trust, and all significant intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

SEASONALITY OF THE HOTEL BUSINESS

The Hotels’ operations historically have been somewhat seasonal.  The three southern Arizona hotels experience their
highest occupancy in the first fiscal quarter and, to a lesser extent, the fourth fiscal quarter.  The second fiscal quarter
tends to be the lowest occupancy period at those three southern Arizona hotels.  This seasonality pattern can be
expected to cause fluctuations in the Trust’s quarterly revenues.  The two hotels located in California and New Mexico
historically experience their most profitable periods during the second and third fiscal quarters (the summer season),
providing some balance to the general seasonality of the Trust’s hotel business.

The seasonal nature of the Trust’s business increases its vulnerability to risks such as labor force shortages and cash
flow issues.  Further, if an adverse event such as an actual or threatened terrorist attack, international conflict, data
breach, regional economic downturn or poor weather conditions should occur during the first or fourth fiscal quarters,
the adverse impact to the Trust’s revenues could likely be greater as a result of its southern Arizona seasonal business.

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

The Trust’s operations are affected by numerous factors, including the economy, competition in the hotel industry and
the effect of the economy on the travel and hospitality industries.  The Trust cannot predict if any of the above items
will have a significant impact in the future, nor can it predict what impact, if any, the occurrence of these or other
events might have on the Trust’s operations and cash flows.  Significant estimates and assumptions made by
management include, but are not limited to, the estimated useful lives of long-lived assets and estimates of future cash
flows used to test a long-lived asset for recoverability and the fair values of the long-lived assets.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND HOTEL PROPERTIES

Furniture, fixtures, building improvements and hotel properties are stated at cost and are depreciated using the
straight-line method over estimated lives ranging up to 40 years for buildings and 3 to 10 years for furniture and
equipment.

Management applies guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"), codified in Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 360-10-35 (“ASC 360-10-35”), to determine when it is required to test an asset for
recoverability of its carrying value and whether an impairment exists. Under ASC 360-10-35, the Trust is required to
test a long-lived asset for impairment when there is an indicator of impairment. Impairment indicators may include,
but are not limited to, drop in the performance of a long-lived asset, a decline in the hospitality industry or a decline in
the economy. If an indicator of potential impairment is present, then an assessment is performed of whether the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted future cash flows over its estimated remaining life.

26

Edgar Filing: INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST - Form 10-K

51



The estimated undiscounted future cash flows of a property is determined based on third party property appraisals,
third party broker opinions of value and Management’s combined real estate expertise. Management believes that third
party property appraisals and third party broker opinions of value are useful because they consider historical
occupancy, average rate levels and cash flows in determining fair value.

If the estimated undiscounted future cash flows over the asset’s estimated remaining life are greater than the asset’s
carrying value, no impairment is recognized; however, if the carrying value of the asset exceeds the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows, then the Trust would recognize an impairment expense to the extent the asset’s
carrying value exceeds its fair value, if any.  The estimated future cash flows are based upon, among other things,
assumptions about expected future operating performance, and may differ from actual cash flows.  Long-lived assets
evaluated for impairment are analyzed on a property-specific basis independent of the cash flows of other groups of
assets.  Evaluation of future cash flows is based on historical experience and other factors, including certain economic
conditions and committed future bookings.  Management has determined that no impairment of long-lived assets
exists during the Trust’s fiscal years ending January 31, 2014 and 2013.

 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Trust considers all highly liquid short-term investments with maturities of three months or less at the time of
purchase to be cash equivalents. The Trust places its cash and cash equivalents only with high credit quality financial
institutions.

RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash consists of amounts held in reserve by lenders to fund capital improvements to the properties.  

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Room, food and beverage, management and licensing fees, and other revenue are recognized as earned as services are
provided and items are sold. Sales taxes collected are excluded from gross revenue.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS
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Accounts receivable are carried at original amounts billed less an estimate made for doubtful accounts based on a
review of outstanding amounts on a quarterly basis.  Management generally records an allowance for doubtful
accounts for 50% of balances over 90 days and 100% of balances over 120 days.  Accounts receivable are written off
when deemed uncollectible.  Recoveries, if any, of receivables previously written off are recorded when
received.  The Trust does not charge interest on accounts receivable balances and these receivables are unsecured.

 Fiscal Year

Balance at

the
Beginning

of Year

Charged
to

Expense

Deductions

Balance
at

the End

of Year
2013 $ 38,159 $ 3,831 $ (7,575 ) $34,415
2014 $ 34,415 $ 5,061 $ (15,883 ) $23,593

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

We have an employee equity incentive plan, which is described more fully in Note 19 - “Share-Based
Payments.”  Restricted shares granted from the plan are measured based on the fair value of the underlying shares on
the date of grant.  We use the straight-line attribution method to recognize share-based compensation over the service
period of the award.

For fiscal year 2014 and 2013, the Trust has paid the annual fees due to its Trustees using newly created Shares of
Beneficial Interest. Upon issuance, the Trust recognizes the shares as outstanding.  The Trust recognizes expense
related to the issuance based on the fair value of the shares upon the date of the restricted share grant and amortizes
the expense equally over the period during which the shares vest to the Trustees.

During fiscal year 2014, the Trust granted restricted stock awards of 18,000 Shares to members of the Board of
Trustees, all of which vested in fiscal year 2014 resulting in stock-based compensation of $30,960. During fiscal year
2013, the Trust granted restricted stock awards of 18,000 Shares to members of the Board of Trustees, all of which
vested in fiscal year 2013 resulting in stock-based compensation of $39,600.
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The following table summarizes restricted share activity during fiscal years 2014 and 2013.

Restricted Shares

Shares
Weighted-Average
Per Share Grant
Date Fair Value

Balance at January 31, 2012 - —
Granted 18,000 $2.20
Vested (18,000 ) $2.20
Forfeited - —
Balance of unvested awards at January 31, 2013 - $0.00

Granted 18,000 $1.72
Vested (18,000 ) $1.72
Forfeited - —
Balance of unvested awards at January 31, 2014 - $0.00

TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock is carried at cost, including any brokerage commissions paid to repurchase the shares.  Any shares
issued from treasury stock are removed at cost, with the difference between cost and fair value at the time of issuance
recorded against common stock.

INCOME TAXES

The Trust is subject to federal and state corporate income taxes, and accounts for deferred taxes utilizing an asset and
liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance
when it is determined to be more likely than not that some portion, or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.

DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS
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In fiscal years 2014 and 2013, the Trust paid dividends of $0.01 per share in the fourth quarter of each year, or total
dividends of $83,449 and $83,846, respectively.  The Trust’s ability to pay dividends is largely dependent upon the
operations of the Hotels.

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Non-controlling interest in the Partnership represents the limited partners’ proportionate share of the capital and
earnings of the Partnership.  Income or loss is allocated to the non-controlling interest based on a weighted average
ownership percentage in the Partnership throughout the period, and capital is allocated based on the ownership
percentage at year-end.  Any difference between the weighted average and point-in-time allocations is presented as a
reallocation of non-controlling interest as a component of shareholders’ equity.

INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted income (loss) per Share of Beneficial Interest is computed based on the weighted-average number of
Shares of Beneficial Interest and potentially dilutive securities outstanding during the period. Dilutive securities are
limited to the Class A and Class B units of the Partnership, which are convertible into 3,693,972 Shares of the
Beneficial Interest, as discussed in Note 1.

For the fiscal years ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, there were Class A and Class B Partnership units outstanding,
which are convertible into Shares of Beneficial Interest of the Trust.  Assuming conversion at the beginning of each
period, the aggregate weighted-average of these Shares of Beneficial Interest would have been 3,693,972 and
3,694,431 in addition to the basic shares outstanding for fiscal year 2014 and 2013, respectively.  These Shares of
Beneficial Interest issuable upon conversion of the Class A and Class B Partnership units were anti-dilutive during
both fiscal year 2014 and 2013 and are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for those years due
to the Trust’s losses, and accordingly, no reconciliation is provided of basic earnings per share to diluted earnings per
share.
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ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

The trust considers assets held for sale when management approves and commits to a formal plan to actively market a
property or group of properties for sale and a signed sales contract and significant non-refundable deposit or contract
break-up fee exists. Upon designation as an asset held for sale, the Trust records the carrying value of each property or
group of properties at the lower of its carrying value or its estimated fair value, less estimated costs to sell, and we
cease the recognition of depreciation expense. Any gain realized in connection with the sale of a property for which
the Trust has significant continued involvement (such as through a long-term management agreement) is deferred and
recognized over the initial term of the related agreement. The operations of the properties held for sale prior to the sale
date are recorded in discontinued operations unless the Trust will have continuing involvement (such as through a
management agreement) after the sale. No assets were deemed held for sale as of January 31, 2014 or 2013.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Trust views its operations as one operating business segment, a hospitality company that has ownership interest in
five hotel properties with an aggregate of 843 suites in Arizona, southern California and New Mexico. The Trust has a
concentration of assets in the southwest United States, and the southern Arizona market.

ADVERTISING COSTS

Amounts incurred for advertising costs are expensed as incurred.  Advertising expense totaled approximately
$624,000 and $559,000 for the years ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

For disclosure purposes, fair value is determined by using available market information and appropriate valuation
methodologies.  Fair value is defined as the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal or most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The fair value framework specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques, which is based
on whether the inputs into the valuation technique are observable or unobservable. The fair value hierarchy levels are
as follows:
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●Level 1 – Valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets forassets or liabilities that are identical to the assets or liabilities being measured;

●

Level 2 – Valuation techniques in which significant inputs include quoted prices from active markets for assets or
liabilities that are similar to the assets or liabilities being measured and / or quoted prices for assets or liabilities that
are identical or similar to the assets or liabilities being measured from markets that are not active. Also,
model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets
are level 2 valuation techniques.

●
Level 3 – Valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.
Unobservable inputs are valuation technique inputs that reflect a company’s own judgments about the assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Trust has no assets or liabilities that are carried at fair value on a recurring basis and had no fair value
re-measurements during the years ended January 31, 2014 and 2013. The Trust’s financial instruments utilize level 3
inputs in the determination of fair value and consist of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, advances to related parties and debt.

Due to their short maturities, the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates fair value. The fair value of mortgage notes payable, notes
payable to banks and notes and advances payable to related parties is estimated by using the current rates which would
be available for similar loans having the same remaining maturities and are based on level 3 inputs.  See Note 16 – “Fair
Value of Financial Instruments.”

3.   SALE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN ALBUQUERQUE SUBSIDIARY

On July 22, 2010, the Board of Trustees unanimously approved, with Mr. Wirth abstaining, for the Partnership to
enter into an agreement with Rare Earth Financial, LLC (“Rare Earth”), an affiliate of Mr. Wirth, to sell units in
Albuquerque Suite Hospitality, LLC (the “Albuquerque entity”), which owns and operates the Albuquerque, New
Mexico hotel property.  Under the agreement, Rare Earth agreed to either purchase or bring in other investors to
purchase at least 49% of the membership interests in the Albuquerque entity and the parties agreed to restructure the
operating agreement of the Albuquerque entity.  A total of 400 units were available for sale for $10,000 per unit, with
a two-unit minimum subscription.  On September 24, 2010, the parties revised the Amended and Restated Operating
Agreement to name Rare Earth as the administrative member of the Albuquerque entity in charge of the day-to-day
management.
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On December 9, 2013, the Trust entered into an updated restructuring agreement with Rare Earth to allow for the sale
of additional interest units in the Albuquerque entity for $10,000 per unit. Under the updated restructuring agreement,
Rare Earth agreed to either purchase or bring in other investors to purchase up to 150 (and potentially up to 190 if the
overallotment is exercised) units. As of January 31, 2014 and per the updated restructuring agreement, the Trust
agreed to hold at least 50.1% of the outstanding limited partnership units in the Albuquerque entity, on a
post-transaction basis and intends to maintain this minimum ownership percentage through the purchase of units under
this offering. The Board of Trustees approved this restructuring on December 9, 2013.  The limited partnership
interests in the Albuquerque entity are allocated to three classes with differing cumulative discretionary priority
distribution rights through December 31, 2015 at which point it is anticipated the hotel will be owned free and
clear. Class A units are owned by unrelated third parties and have first priority for distributions. Class B units are
owned by the Trust and have second priority for distributions. Class C units are owned by Rare Earth or other
affiliates of Mr. Wirth and have the lowest priority for distributions from the Albuquerque entity. Priority distributions
of $700 per unit per year are cumulative until December 31, 2015; however, after December 31, 2015 Class A unit
holders continue to hold a preference on distributions over Class B and Class C unit holders.

If certain triggering events related to the Albuquerque entity occur prior to the payment of all accumulated
distributions to its members, such accumulated distributions will be paid out of any proceeds of the event before
general distribution of the proceeds to the members.  In the event that funds generated from a triggering event are
insufficient to pay the total amount of all such accumulated distributions owed to the members, all Class A members
will participate pro rata in the funds available for distribution to them until paid in full, then Class B, and then Class C.
After all investors have received their initial capital plus a 7% per annum simple return, any additional profits will be
allocated 50% to Rare Earth, with the remaining 50% allocated proportionately to all unit classes. Rare Earth received
a restructuring fee of $128,000, conditioned upon and arising from the sale of the first 100 units in the Albuquerque
entity following the December 31, 2013 restructuring. Assuming all 150 units are sold from the offering discussed
above, discretionary priority distributions to all Classes are projected to be approximately $385,000 annually through
December 31, 2015. The Albuquerque entity plans to use its best efforts to pay the discretionary priority distributions.
The Trust does not guarantee and is not otherwise obligated to pay the cumulative discretionary priority distributions.
InnSuites Hotels will continue to provide management, licensing and reservation services to the Albuquerque, New
Mexico property.

 At January 31, 2014, the Albuquerque entity had sold 18.5 additional units to unrelated parties at $10,000 per unit
totaling $185,000 and the Trust purchased a net of 21 additional units at $10,000 per unit totaling $210,000 under the
updated restructuring agreement. As of January 31, 2014, the Trust holds a 50.85% ownership interest, or 223.50
Class B units, Mr. Wirth and his affiliates hold a 0.11% interest through Rare Earth, or 0.50 Class C units, and other
parties hold a 49.03% interest, or 215.50 Class A units. As of January 31, 2014, the Albuquerque entity has
discretionary Priority Return payments to unrelated unit holders of approximately $151,000, to the Trust of
approximately $156,000 and to Rare Earth of approximately $400 per year payable quarterly for calendar year 2015.

4.   SALE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN TUCSON HOSPITALITY PROPERTIES SUBSIDIARY

Edgar Filing: INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST - Form 10-K

58



On February 17, 2011, the Partnership entered into a restructuring agreement with Rare Earth to allow for the sale of
non-controlling interest units in Tucson Hospitality Properties, LP (the “Tucson entity”), which operates the Tucson
Foothills hotel property, which was then wholly-owned by the Partnership.  Under the agreement, Rare Earth agreed
to either purchase or bring in other investors to purchase up to 250 units, which represents approximately 41% of the
outstanding limited partnership units in the Tucson entity, on a post-transaction basis, and the parties agreed to
restructure the limited partnership agreement of the Tucson entity. The Board of Trustees approved this restructuring
on January 31, 2011.

         On October 1, 2013, the Partnership entered into an updated restructured limited partnership agreement with
Rare Earth to allow for the sale of additional interest units in the Tucson entity for $10,000 per unit.  Under the
agreement, Rare Earth agreed to either purchase or bring in other investors to purchase up to 160 (and potentially up
to 200 if the overallotment is exercised) units. As of October 31, 2013 and per the updated restructuring agreement,
the Partnership agreed to hold at least 50.1% of the outstanding limited partnership units in the Tucson entity, on a
post-transaction basis and intends to maintain this minimum ownership percentage through the purchase of units under
this offering. The Board of Trustees approved this restructuring on September 14, 2013.  The limited partnership
interests in the Tucson entity are allocated to three classes with differing cumulative discretionary priority distribution
rights through June 30, 2016. Class A units are owned by unrelated third parties and have first priority for
distributions. Class B units are owned by the Partnership and have second priority for distributions. Class C units are
owned by Rare Earth or other affiliates of Mr. Wirth and have the lowest priority for distributions from the Tucson
entity. Priority distributions of $700 per unit per year are cumulative until June 30, 2016; however, after June 30, 2016
Class A unit holders continue to hold a preference on distributions over Class B and Class C unit holders.
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If certain triggering events related to the Tucson entity occur prior to the payment of all accumulated distributions to
its members, such accumulated distributions will be paid out of any proceeds of the event before general distribution
of the proceeds to the members.  In the event that funds generated from a triggering event are insufficient to pay the
total amount of all such accumulated distributions owed to the members, all Class A members will participate pro rata
in the funds available for distribution to them until paid in full, then Class B, and then Class C. After all investors have
received their initial capital plus a 7% per annum simple return, any additional profits will be allocated 50% to Rare
Earth, with the remaining 50% allocated proportionately to all unit classes.  Rare Earth will receive a restructuring fee
of $128,000, conditioned upon and arising from the sale of the first 100 units in the Tucson entity following the
October 1, 2013 restructuring. Assuming all 160 units are sold from the offering discussed above, discretionary
priority distributions to all Classes are projected to be approximately $540,000 annually through June 30, 2016. The
Tucson entity plans to use its best efforts to pay the discretionary priority distributions. The Trust does not guarantee
and is not otherwise obligated to pay the cumulative discretionary priority distributions. InnSuites Hotels will continue
to provide management, licensing and reservation services to the Tucson, Arizona property.

As of January 31, 2014, the Trust had sold its entire 11 units in the Tucson entity to the Partnership. At January 31,
2014, the Tucson entity had sold 108.50 units to unrelated parties at $10,000 per unit totaling $1,085,000 and the
Partnership purchased a net of 54 additional units at $10,000 per unit totaling $540,000 under the updated restructured
limited partnership agreement. As of January 31, 2014, the Trust does not hold any interest in the Tucson entity, the
Partnership holds a 51.00% ownership interest, or 395 Class B units, Mr. Wirth and his affiliates hold a 1.55%
interest, or 12 Class C units, and other parties hold a 47.45% interest, or 367.50 Class A units. As of January 31, 2014,
the Tucson entity has discretionary payments to unrelated unit holders of approximately $257,000, to the Partnership
of approximately $277,000 and to Rare Earth of approximately $8,000 per year payable quarterly for calendar years
2015 and 2016.

5.   SALE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN ONTARIO HOSPITALITY PROPERTIES SUBSIDIARY

On February 29, 2012, the Trust and Partnership entered into a restructuring agreement with Rare Earth to allow for
the sale of minority interest units in Ontario Hospitality Properties, LP (the “Ontario entity”) for $10,000 per unit, which
operates the Ontario hotel property, which was then wholly-owned by the Partnership.  Under the agreement, Rare
Earth agreed to either purchase or bring in other investors to purchase up to 250 units, which represents approximately
49% of the outstanding partnership units in the Ontario entity, on a post-transaction basis, and the parties agreed to
restructure the limited partnership agreement of the Ontario entity. The Board of Trustees approved this restructuring
on February 1, 2012.

Under the restructured limited partnership agreement, Rare Earth became a general partner of the Ontario entity along
with the Trust and Partnership.  The limited partnership interests in the Ontario entity are allocated to three classes
with differing cumulative discretionary priority distribution rights through March 31, 2017. Class A units are owned
by unrelated third parties and have first priority for distributions. Class B units are owned by the Trust and Partnership
and have second priority for distributions. Class C units are owned by Rare Earth or other affiliates of Mr. Wirth and
have the lowest priority for distributions from the Ontario entity. Priority distributions of $700 per unit per year are
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cumulative until March 31, 2017; however, after March 31, 2017 Class A unit holders continue to hold a preference
on distributions over Class B and Class C unit holders.

If certain triggering events related to the Ontario entity occur prior to the payment of all accumulated distributions to
its members, such accumulated distributions will be paid out of any proceeds of the event before general distribution
of the proceeds to the members.  In the event that funds generated from a triggering event are insufficient to pay the
total amount of all such accumulated distributions owed to the members, all Class A members will participate pro rata
in the funds available for distribution to them until paid in full, then Class B, and then Class C. After all investors have
received their initial capital plus a 7% per annum simple return, any additional profits will be allocated 50% to Rare
Earth, with the remaining 50% allocated proportionately to all unit classes. Rare Earth also received a formation fee of
$320,000, conditioned upon and arising from the sale of the first 160 units in the Ontario entity. Priority distributions
to all Classes are projected to be approximately $446,660 for each of the calendar years 2015 through 2017. The
Ontario entity is required to use its best efforts to pay the priority distributions. The Trust does not guarantee and is
not otherwise obligated to pay the cumulative priority distributions. InnSuites Hotels will continue to provide
management, licensing and reservation services to the Ontario, California property.

As of January 31, 2014, the Partnership holds a 61.55% ownership interest, or 392.70 Class B units, in the Ontario
entity, the Trust holds a 0.05% ownership interest, 0.30 Class B units, Mr. Wirth and his affiliates hold a 1.57%
interest through Rare Earth, or 10 Class C units, and other parties hold a 36.83% interest, or 235 Class A units. As of
January 31, 2014 the Ontario entity has discretionary Priority Return payments to unrelated unit holders of
approximately $165,000, to the Trust of approximately $200, to the Partnership of approximately $275,000 and to
Rare Earth of approximately $7,000 per year payable quarterly for calendar year 2015, 2016 and 2017.

31

Edgar Filing: INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST - Form 10-K

61



6.   PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT AND HOTEL PROPERTIES

As of January 31 2014 and 2013, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

2014 2013
Land $7,005 $7,005
Building and improvements 75,662 75,662
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 380,846 370,408
Total property, plant and equipment 463,513 453,075
Less accumulated depreciation (374,165) (340,098)
Property, Plant and Equipment, net $89,348 $112,977

As of January 31 2014 and 2013, hotel properties consisted of the following:

2014 2013
Land $3,034,150 $2,817,515
Building and improvements 34,236,297 34,016,176
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5,167,117 4,990,808
Total hotel properties 42,437,564 41,824,499
Less accumulated depreciation (18,767,369) (17,230,102)
Hotel Properties in Service, net 23,670,195 24,594,397
Construction in progress 2,520 92,383
Hotel properties, net $23,672,715 $24,686,780

7.   PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expenses and other current assets are carried at historic cost and expect to be consumed within one year. As of
January 31 2014 and 2013, prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following:

2014 2013
Prepaid Insurance $87,492 $51,089
Tax and Insurance Escrow 125,353 110,422
Other Prepaid Expenses and Current Assets 171,214 106,888
Total Prepaid Expenses and Current Assets $384,059 $268,399
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8.   ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

As of January 31 2014 and 2013, accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following:

2014 2013
Accounts Payable $954,776 $757,086
Accrued Salaries and Wages 134,222 180,895
Accrued Vacation 13,334 144,552
Sales Tax Payable 341,909 314,605
Income Tax Payable 48,715 25,355
Accrued Interest Payable 52,852 49,579
Advanced Customer Deposits 68,912 181,093
Accrued Property Taxes 250,393 248,012
Accrued Land Lease 95,957 108,437
Accrued Other 260,568 288,883
Total Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $2,221,638 $2,298,497

9.  MORTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE

At January 31, 2014 and 2013, the Trust had mortgage notes payable outstanding with respect to each of the
Hotels.  The mortgage notes payable have various repayment terms and have scheduled maturity dates ranging from
January 2015 to August 2022.  Weighted average interest rates on the mortgage notes payable for the fiscal years
ended January 31, 2014 and 2013 were 4.89% and 4.97%, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the Trust’s mortgage notes payable as of January 31:

2014 2013
Mortgage note payable, due in monthly installments of $32,419, including interest at the
prime rate plus one percentage point over the index, with a floor of 5.0% per year,
through August 1, 2022 plus a balloon payment of $4,112,498 in September 2022,
secured by the Yuma property with a carrying value of $5.2 million at January 31, 2014.

$5,355,051 $5,469,475

Mortgage note payable, due in monthly installments of $48,738, including interest at
8.0% per year, through May 1, 2016, secured by the Tucson Foothills property with a
carrying value of $4.0 million at January 31, 2014.

1,241,111 1,706,278

Mortgage note payable, due in monthly installments of $31,701, including interest at
5.0% per year, through January 14, 2015, plus a balloon payment of $5,630,315 in
January 2015, secured by the Ontario property with a carrying value of $5.7 million at
January 31, 2014.

5,983,480 6,323,592

Mortgage note payable, due in monthly installments of $16,032 including interest at
7.75% per year, through November 1, 2021, secured by the Albuquerque property with a
carrying value of $1.3 million at January 31, 2014.

1,126,983 1,227,744

Mortgage note payable, due in variable monthly installments ($29,776 as of January 31,
2014) including interest at the prime rate (3.25% per year as of January 31, 2014),
through January 28, 2015, plus a balloon payment of $4,874,618 in January 2015,
secured by the Tucson St. Mary's property with a carrying value of $7.5 million at
January 31, 2014.

5,039,946 5,227,835

Totals: $18,746,571 $19,954,924

The mortgage notes payable secured by the Albuquerque and Tucson St. Mary’s hotel properties are recourse to the
Partnership and Trust as full guarantors.  The mortgage note payable secured by the Yuma hotel property is recourse
to the Trust as a full guarantor. None of the other mortgage notes are recourse to the Partnership or the Trust.

The non-recourse mortgage note payable relating to our Ontario property, which is secured by the property and the
rents, revenues and profits from the property, matured on May 11, 2011 and was modified on February 14, 2012. The
lender reduced the principal balance by $500,000 and waived all penalties and accumulated interest in exchange for a
$1.0 million pay down of the principal balance by the Trust. The interest rate was lowered from 8.28% to 5.0%
reducing the monthly principal and interest payments to $31,700 from $71,100. The note was extended for three years
to January 14, 2015. The Trust accounted for the modification as a troubled debt restructuring. Based on the terms of
the modified mortgage note payable, the total future cash payments of $7,795,006 consists of $6,905,289 in principal
payments and $889,717 interest payments. As such, total future cash payments exceeded the carrying value of the note
payable (including accrued interest) of $7,646,030 at the date of restructure by $148,976. As a result, there was no
gain or loss recorded during the period. In addition, no adjustment was made to the carrying value of the note at the
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date of restructure. Instead this requires the Trust to recognize interest expense using an effective interest rate on the
debt after the restructuring, which results in $148,976 of interest expense being recognized over the remainder of the
term.

See Note 12 – “Minimum Debt Payments” for scheduled minimum payments on the mortgage notes payable.

10.  NOTES PAYABLE TO BANKS

On September 24, 2013, Ontario Hospitality Properties, LP (“Ontario”), a subsidiary of the Trust, entered into a
$168,540 business loan, including $9,540 of loan fees, with American Express Bank, FSB (the “Ontario Merchant
Agreement”) with a maturity date of September 23, 2014. The Ontario Merchant Agreement includes a loan fee of 6%
of the original principal balance of the loan with acceleration provisions upon default. The business loan is secured
and paid back with 30% of the Ontario American Express merchant receipts received during the loan period. As of
January 31, 2014, the business loan balance was approximately $123,000.

On November 25, 2013, Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited Partnership, a subsidiary of the Trust, entered into a
$362,520 business loan, including $20,520 of loan fees, with American Express Bank, FSB (the “Yuma Merchant
Agreement”) with a maturity date of November 24, 2014. The Yuma Merchant Agreement includes a loan fee of 6% of
the original principal balance of the loan with acceleration provisions upon default. The business loan is secured and
paid back with 30% of the Yuma American Express, VISA and MasterCard merchant receipts received during the
loan period. As of January 31, 2014, the business loan balance was approximately $313,000.

33

Edgar Filing: INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST - Form 10-K

65



As of January 31, 2014, the Trust has a revolving bank line of credit agreement, with a credit limit of $600,000.  The
line of credit bears interest at the prime rate plus 1.0% per annum with a 6.0% floor, has no financial covenants and
matures on June 23, 2014.  The line is secured by a junior security interest in the Yuma, Arizona property and the
Trust’s trade receivables.  Mr. Wirth is a guarantor on the line of credit.  The Trust had approximately $583,000 drawn
on this line of credit as of January 31, 2014.

11. LINE OF CREDIT – RELATED PARTY

As of January 31, 2014, the Trust had a $331,390 Demand/Revolving Line of Credit/Promissory Note outstanding
with Rare Earth Financial, LLC. The Demand/Revolving Line of Credit/Promissory Note bears an interest of 7% per
year and is due in full, on or before January 31, 2015. The total line of credit available for use by the Trust is
$1,000,000.

12.  OTHER NOTES PAYABLE

As of January 31, 2014, the Trust had $187,567 in secured promissory notes outstanding to unrelated third parties
arising from the repurchase of 145,564 Class A Partnership units and the repurchase of 132,051 Shares of Beneficial
Interest in privately negotiated transactions.  These promissory notes bear interest at 7% per year and are due in
varying monthly payments through October 2016.  The repurchased Class A Partnership units and Shares of
Beneficial Interest secure the notes.  As of January 31, 2013, the Trust had $348,696 in secured promissory notes
outstanding to unrelated third parties arising from the repurchase of 145,564 Class A Partnership units and the
repurchase of 384,727 Shares of Beneficial Interest in privately negotiated transactions.

13.  MINIMUM DEBT PAYMENTS

Scheduled minimum payments of debt as of January 31, 2014 are as follows in the respective fiscal years indicated:

FISCAL YEAR MORTGAGES

NOTES
PAYABLE

TO BANK

LINE OF
CREDIT -
RELATED
PARTY

OTHER
NOTES

PAYABLE

TOTAL

2015 $ 11,753,088 $1,018,925 $ 331,390 $ 81,461 $13,184,864
2016 793,135 - - 67,984 861,119
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2017 451,232 - - 38,122 489,354
2018 277,300 - - - 277,300
2019 295,591 - - - 295,591
Thereafter 5,176,225 - - - 5,176,225

$ 18,746,571 $1,018,925 $ 331,390 $ 187,567 $20,284,453

14. DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

Holders of the Trust’s Shares of Beneficial Interest are entitled to receive dividends when and if declared by the Board
of Trustees of the Trust out of funds legally available therefore.  The holders of Shares of Beneficial Interest, upon any
liquidation, dissolution or winding-down of the Trust, are entitled to share ratably in any assets remaining after
payment in full of all liabilities of the Trust.  The Shares of Beneficial Interest possess ordinary voting rights, each
share entitling the holder thereof to one vote.  Holders of Shares of Beneficial Interest do not have cumulative voting
rights in the election of Trustees and do not have preemptive rights.

On January 2, 2001, the Board of Trustees approved a share repurchase program under Rule 10b-18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, for the purchase of up to 250,000 Partnership units and/or Shares of Beneficial
Interest in open market or privately negotiated transactions.  On September 10, 2002, August 18, 2005 and September
10, 2007, the Board of Trustees approved the purchase of up to 350,000 additional Partnership units and/or Shares of
Beneficial Interest in open market or privately negotiated transactions. Additionally, on January 5, 2009, September
15, 2009 and January 31, 2010, the Board of Trustees approved the purchase of up to 300,000, 250,000 and 350,000,
respectively, additional Partnership units and/or Shares of Beneficial Interest in open market or privately negotiated
transactions.  Acquired Shares of Beneficial Interest will be held in treasury and will be available for future
acquisitions and financings and/or for awards granted under the InnSuites Hospitality Trust 1997 Stock Incentive and
Option Plan.  During the three months ended January 31, 2014, the Trust acquired 7,874 Shares of Beneficial Interest
in open market transactions at an average price of $1.84 per share.  The average price paid includes brokerage
commissions. The Trust intends to continue repurchasing Shares of Beneficial Interest in compliance with applicable
legal and NYSE MKT requirements.  The Trust remains authorized to repurchase an additional 227,816 Partnership
units and/or Shares of Beneficial Interest pursuant to the publicly announced share repurchase program, which has no
expiration date.
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For the years ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, the Trust repurchased 51,308 and 85,131 Shares of Beneficial Interest
at an average price of $1.86 and $2.29 per share, respectively.  Repurchased Shares of Beneficial Interest are
accounted for as treasury stock in the Trust’s Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity.

15. FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

The Trust and its subsidiaries have income tax net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $10.1 million at
January 31, 2014.  The Trust periodically has ownership changes within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code
Section 382.  However, the Trust determined that such ownership changes would not have a material impact on the
future use of the net operating losses. Generally, the Trust is no longer subject to income tax examinations prior to
2011 for federal and 2010 for state purposes.

The Trust and subsidiaries have federal and state net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $10.1 million at
January 31, 2014, having expiration dates ranging from fiscal years 2018 to 2031.

Total and net deferred income tax assets at January 31, 2014 2013
Net operating loss carryforwards $3,349,000 $4,622,000
Bad debt allowance (16,000 ) (17,000 )
Accrued expenses 1,537,000 1,496,000
Prepaid insurance 1,000 13,000
Alternative minimum tax credit 61,000 61,000
Total deferred income tax assets 4,932,000 6,175,000
Deferred income tax liability associated with book/tax differences in hotel properties (2,195,000) (2,263,000)
Net deferred income tax asset 2,737,000 3,912,000
Valuation allowance (2,737,000) (3,912,000)
Net deferred income tax asset $- $-

 The differences between the statutory and effective tax rates are as follows for the year ended January 31, 2014:

Federal statutory rates $(295,000) (34%)
State income taxes (64,000 ) (7 %)
Sale of syndication units 345,000 40 %
True-ups to prior year return, net 51,000 40 %
Effective rate $37,000 6 %
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The true-ups to prior year return related primarily to the sale of syndication units in the Company’s subsidiaries which
are treated as equity transactions in the Company’s financial statements but are taxed as capital gain transactions and
totaled $1,232,000, causing the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards totaling $1,175,000, which were then
offset by the release of valuation allowances.

 The differences between the statutory and effective tax rates are as follows for the year ended January 31, 2013:

Federal statutory rates $(406,000) (34%)
State income taxes (88,000 ) (7 %)
Change in valuation allowance 718,000 60 %
True-ups to prior year return (237,000) (20%)
Other 13,000 1 %
Effective rate $- 0 %

The valuation allowance increased by approximately $718,000 in the year ended January 31, 2013 primarily due to a
reduction in deferred tax liabilities associated with hotel properties due to timing differences in depreciation
recognition.

The Trust's practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. The
Trust had no accrued interest or penalties at January 31, 2014 and 2013.

16. OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Partnership is responsible for all operating expenses incurred by the Trust in accordance with the Partnership
Agreement.

As of January 31, 2014 and 2013, Mr. Wirth and his affiliates held 3,407,938 Class B Partnership units, which
represented 25.8% of the total outstanding Partnership units.  As of January 31, 2014 and 2013, Mr. Wirth and his
affiliates held 6,055,376 and 5,573,624, respectively, Shares of Beneficial Interest in the Trust, which represented
72.6% and 66.6%, respectively, of the total issued and outstanding Shares of Beneficial Interest.
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As of January 31, 2014 and 2013, the Trust owned 72.04% of the Partnership. As of January 31, 2014, the Partnership
owned 100% of one InnSuites® hotels located in Tucson, Arizona, a 51% interest in another InnSuites® hotel located
in Tucson, Arizona and together with the Trust a 61.60% interest in an InnSuites® hotel located in Ontario,
California.  The Trust owns and operates the Yuma, Arizona hotel property directly, which it acquired from the
Partnership on January 31, 2005, and owns a direct 50.85% interest in one InnSuites® hotel located in Albuquerque,
New Mexico.

The Trust directly manages the Hotels through the Trust’s wholly-owned subsidiary, InnSuites Hotels.  Under the
management agreements, InnSuites Hotels manages the daily operations of the Hotels and the three hotels owned by
affiliates of Mr. Wirth. Revenues and reimbursements among the Trust, InnSuites Hotels and the Partnership have
been eliminated in consolidation.  The management fees for the Hotels are set at 2.5% of room revenue and a monthly
accounting fee of $2,000 per hotel. Prior to October 1, 2013, the management fees for the three hotels owned by
affiliates of Mr. Wirth were set at 2.5% of room revenue and an annual accounting fee of $27,000, payable $1,000 per
month with an additional payment of $15,000 due at year-end for annual accounting closing activities. This practice
was ceased as of October 1, 2013, and replaced with management fees for the three hotels owned by Mr. Wirth of
2.5% of room revenue and a monthly accounting fee of $2,000 per hotel   These agreements have no expiration date
and may be cancelled by either party with 90-days written notice or 30-days written notice in the event the property
changes ownership.

On July 23, 2013, the Trust entered into a Corporate Card Agreement (“Corporate Purchase Cards”) with American
Express Travel Related Services Company, Inc. The Corporate Card Agreement distributed a total of nine purchase
cards - one to each of the five respective Hotels, one to the Trust, and one to each of the three respective hotels owned
by affiliates of James F. Wirth. The Corporate Card Agreement, with a total limit of $300,000, includes insignificant
annual fees and $0 of interest per annum. Payments are due monthly. The Corporate Card Agreement may be
cancelled by either party with 30-days written notice. Pamela J. Barnhill, the Trust’s President and Vice Chairperson
and daughter of Mr. Wirth, personally guaranteed the nine purchase cards. As of January 31, 2014, the Trust’s portion
of the Corporate Purchase Cards balance was approximately $139,000.

The Trust has an unsecured demand/revolving line of credit/promissory note as described in Note 11 – Line of Credit -
Related Party with Rare Earth Financial, LLC.

17. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Yuma, Arizona and Tucson St. Mary’s Hotels’ mortgage notes payable approximate fair
value because interest rates are primarily variable and, accordingly, approximate current market rates for instruments
with similar risk and maturities. The fair value of remaining notes payable and long-term debt was estimated based on
the borrowing rates currently available to the Trust for bank loans with similar terms and maturities.
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The following table presents the estimated fair values of the Trust’s debt instruments and the associated carrying value
recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at January 31 2014 and 2013: 

2014 2013
CARRYING

AMOUNT

FAIR

VALUE

CARRYING

AMOUNT

FAIR

VALUE

Mortgage notes payable $18,746,571 $18,642,765 $19,954,924 $18,390,891

Notes payable to banks $1,018,925 $1,018,925 $450,000 $450,000

Other notes payable $187,567 $181,454 $352,256 $354,308
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18.  SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES

2014 2013
Cash paid for interest $754,919 $961,709

Promissory notes issued by the Trust to acquire Class A Partnership units $- $15,500

Promissory notes issued by the Trust to acquire Shares of Beneficial Interest $29,360 $8,000

19.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Tucson Foothills and the Albuquerque Hotels are subject to non-cancelable ground leases. The Tucson Foothills
non-cancelable ground lease expires in 2050. The Albuquerque Hotel non-cancelable ground lease was extended on
January 14, 2014 and expires in 2058. Total expense associated with the non-cancelable ground leases for the fiscal
years ended January 31, 2014 and 2013 was $212,236 and $210,501, respectively, plus a variable component based on
gross revenues of each property that totaled approximately $88,000 and $73,000, respectively.

During 2010, the Trust entered into a five-year office lease for its corporate headquarters.  The Trust recorded $45,021
and $30,718 of general and administrative expense related to the lease during fiscal year 2014 and 2013,
respectively.  The lease included a base rent charge of $24,000 for the first lease year with annual increases to a final
year base rent of $39,600.  The Trust has the option to cancel the lease after each lease year for penalties of four
months’ rent after the first year with the penalty decreasing by one month’s rent each successive lease year.  It is the
Trust’s intention to remain in the office for the duration of the five-year lease period.

Future minimum lease payments under these non-cancelable ground leases and office lease are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
2015 $235,670
2016 213,508
2017 213,508
2018 213,508
2019 213,508
Thereafter 9,085,678

Total $10,175,380
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The Trust is obligated under loan agreements relating to four of its hotels to deposit 4% of the individual hotel’s room
revenue into an escrow account to be used for capital expenditures.  The escrow funds applicable to the four hotel
properties for which a mortgage lender escrow exists are reported on the Trust’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as
“Restricted Cash.”

InnSuites Hotels has entered into membership agreements with Best Western International, Inc. (“Best Western”) for
four of the hotel properties.  In exchange for use of the Best Western name, trademark and reservation system, the
participating Hotels pay fees to Best Western based on reservations received through the use of the Best Western
reservation system and the number of available suites at the participating Hotels.  The agreements with Best Western
have no specific expiration terms and may be cancelled by either party.  Best Western requires that the participating
hotels meet certain requirements for room quality, and the Hotels are subject to removal from its reservation system if
these requirements are not met.  The Hotels with third-party membership agreements received significant reservations
through the Best Western reservation system.  Under these arrangements, fees paid for membership fees and
reservations were approximately $310,000 and $313,000 for fiscal years 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The nature of the operations of the Hotels exposes them to risks of claims and litigation in the normal course of their
business.  Although the outcome of these matters cannot be determined and is covered by insurance, management
does not expect that the ultimate resolution of these matters will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated
financial position, results of operations or liquidity of the Trust.

The Trust is involved from time to time in various other claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of
business.  In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse
effect on the Trust’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
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On January 8, 2013, the Trust received a letter from the NYSE MKT LLC (f/k/a AMEX) (the "NYSE MKT")
informing the Trust that the staff of the NYSE MKT’s Corporate Compliance Department has determined that the
Trust is not in compliance with Section 1003(a)(ii) of the NYSE MKT Company Guide due to the Trust having
stockholders' equity of less than $4.0 million and losses from continuing operations in three of its four most recent
fiscal years.

The Trust was afforded the opportunity to submit a plan of compliance to the NYSE MKT and submitted its plan on
February 5, 2013. On March 21, 2013, the NYSE MKT notified the Trust that it accepted the Trust’s plan of
compliance and granted the Trust an extension until April 30, 2014 to regain compliance with the continued listing
standards.

On May 2, 2013, the Trust received another letter from the NYSE MKT informing the Trust that the Trust is not in
compliance with an additional continued listing standard of the NYSE MKT, Section 1003(a)(iii) of the NYSE MKT
Company Guide, due to the Trust having stockholders’ equity of less than $6.0 million and net losses in five
consecutive fiscal years as of January 31, 2013. The plan submitted in response to the first letter received increased
stockholders’ equity in excess of $6.0 million before the April 30, 2014 deadline; therefore the Trust was not required
to submit an additional plan to regain compliance with the continued listing standards.

The Trust is undertaking efforts, as outlined in its plan, to regain compliance with the NYSE MKT continued listing
standards.

On December 16, 2013, the Trust requested an extension of the plan period. Based on a review of information
provided by the Trust’s, on January 10, 2014, the NYSE MKT granted the Trust an extension of time to regain
compliance with the continued listing standards until July 8, 2014. The Trust will be subject to periodic review by the
NYSE MKT’s staff during this extension period. Failure to make progress consistent with the plan or to regain
compliance with the NYSE MKT continued listing standards by the end of the extension period could result in the
Trust being delisted from the NYSE MKT.

20.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During fiscal year 1999, the shareholders of the Trust adopted the 1997 Stock Incentive and Option Plan (the
“Plan”).  Pursuant to the Plan, the Compensation Committee may grant options to the Trustees, officers, other key
employees, consultants, advisors and similar employees of the Trust and certain of its subsidiaries and affiliates.  The
number of options that may be granted in a year is limited to 10% of the total Shares of Beneficial Interest and
Partnership units in the Partnership (Class A and Class B) outstanding as of the first day of such year.
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Generally, granted options expire 10 years from the date of grant, are exercisable during the optionee’s lifetime only by
the recipient and are non-transferable.  Unexercised options held by employees of the Trust generally terminate on the
date the individual ceases to be an employee of the Trust.

There were no options granted in fiscal year 2014 or 2013, and no options outstanding as of January 31, 2014 and
2013.  The Plan currently has 1,000,000 options available to grant.  The Plan also permits the Trust to award stock
appreciation rights, none of which, as of January 31, 2014, have been issued.

See Note 2 – "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" for information related to grants of restricted shares.

21.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

ADDITIONAL SALE OF OWNERSHIP INTERSTS

On March 1, 2014, the Trust and Partnership entered into an updated restructuring agreement with Rare Earth to allow
for the sale of additional interest units in the Ontario entity for $10,000 per unit. Under the agreement, Rare Earth
agreed to either purchase or bring in other investors to purchase up to 235 (and potentially up to 275 if the
overallotment is exercised) units. The Trust and Partnership agreed to hold at least 50.1% of the outstanding limited
partnership units in the Ontario entity, on a post-transaction basis and intends to maintain this minimum ownership
percentage through the purchase of units under this offering. The Board of Trustees approved this restructuring on
March 24, 2014. As of April 18, 2014, we have continued to sell units under our Ontario entity, Tucson entity and
Albuquerque entity offerings and have raised approximately $80,000, $80,000 and $437,000, respectively, through the
sale of approximately 8, 8 and 44 units, respectively, to unrelated parties at $10,000 per unit.

51% PRUCHASE OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS OF FORT WORTH/DALLAS SUITE HOSPITALITY
PARTNERHSIP

On March 24, 2014, the Trust entered into a Partnership Interests Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with
Suite Hotels, LLC (the “Seller”), an affiliate of James F. Wirth, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Trust, to
purchase 51% of the partnership interests of Fort Worth/Dallas Suite Hospitality Partnership, an Arizona general
partnership (the “Company”), upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement. The Company is in
the hospitality business and owns and operates a 168-suite hotel in the Fort Worth/Dallas area known as Hotel Trinity.
The Purchase Agreement was unanimously approved by independent trustees of the Trust.
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As consideration for the purchase of 51% of the partnership interests of the Company, the Trust agreed to pay to the
Seller an aggregate purchase price of 51% of the book value of the Net Assets of the Company as of January 31, 2014
(the “Purchase Price”). The “Net Assets” means the total book value of the assets of the Company less any outstanding
book value of all of the Company’s liabilities. The Company’s “Net Assets” were approximately $1,700,000 as of January
31, 2014. The Trust agreed to pay to the Seller at the Purchase Price the equivalent value of the Trusts’ shares of
beneficial interest, no par value per share (“Stock”). The number of the Trust’s shares of Stock to be issued to the Seller
will be determined by dividing the Purchase Price by the average daily closing price of the Stock during the month of
January 2014. The Trust expects to issue approximately 530,791 shares of Stock to the Seller for the purchase of the
51% partnership interests of the Company.

The consummation of the transaction depends upon the satisfaction or waiver of a number of certain customary
closing conditions and approvals. In addition, the consummation of the transaction is subject to the approval of the
Trust’s shareholders.

The transaction is expected to close in June 2014 but there can be no assurances that the transaction will be completed
on the proposed terms or at all. The Trust expects to hold its annual meeting of shareholders in June 2014 where the
Trust’s shareholders will vote on the issuance of shares of Stock as consideration for the transaction.
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SCHEDULE III

INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST AND SUBSIDIARY

REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2014

Initial Cost of Tenant
Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to
Acquisition

Gross Amounts at Which
Carried at Close of
Period

 Properties EncumbrancesLand Building and
Improvements Land

Building
and
Improvements

Land
Buildings
and
Improvements

InnSuites Hotels
and Suites
Tuscon Foothills
Best Western
Hotel

$ 1,241,111 $- $ 4,220,820 $- $ 2,353,546 $- $ 6,574,366

InnSuites Hotels
and Suites Yuma
Best Western
Hotel

5,355,051 251,649 4,983,292 53,366 2,632,306 305,015 7,615,598

InnSuites Hotels
and Suites
Ontario Airport
Best Western
Hotel

5,983,480 1,633,064 5,450,872 - 1,605,547 1,633,064 7,056,419

InnSuites Hotels
and Suites
Tucson St.
Mary's Hotel

5,039,946 900,000 9,166,549 196,071 1,650,293 1,096,071 10,816,842

InnSuites Hotels
and Suites
Airport
Albuquerque
Best Western
Hotel

1,126,983 - 1,903,970 - 269,102 - 2,173,072
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InnSuites
Hospitality Trust
Phoenix,
Arizona

- 7,005 75,662 - - 7,005 75,662

$18,746,571 $2,791,718 $ 25,801,165 $249,437 $ 8,510,794 $3,041,155 $ 34,311,959

Properties
Gross Land
and
Building

Accumulated
Depreciation

Net Book
value Land
and

Buildings and
Improvements

Date of
Construction

Date of

Acquisition

Depreciation
in

Income

Statements
is

Computed
(years)

InnSuites Hotels and Suites
Tucson Foothills Best Western
Hotel

$6,574,366 $2,785,659 $ 3,788,707 1981 1998 5 - 40 

InnSuites Hotels and Suites Yuma
Best Western Hotel 7,920,613 3,079,448 4,841,165 1982 1998 5 - 40 

InnSuites Hotels and Suites
Ontario Airport Best Western
Hotel

8,689,483 3,325,375 5,364,108 1990 1998 5 - 40 

InnSuites Hotels and Suites
Tucson St. Mary's Hotel 11,912,913 4,724,454 7,188,459 1960 1998 5 - 40 

InnSuites Hotels and Suites
Airport Albuquerque Best
Western Hotel

2,173,072 1,044,864 1,128,208 1975 2000 5 - 40

InnSuites Hospitality Trust
Phoenix, Arizona 82,667 24,590 58,077 2004 2004 33

$37,353,114 $14,984,390 $ 22,368,724
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Reconciliation of Real Estate:

Balance at January 31, 2012 $37,467,448
Improvement to Hotel Properties $447,289
Disposal of Property Improvements $(998,379 )

Balance at January 31, 2013 $36,916,358
Improvement to Hotel Properties $566,049
Disposal of Property Improvements $(129,293 )

Balance at January 31, 2014 $37,353,114
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 SCHEDULE IV

MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE

Face
Amount of

1/31/14
Carrying

Description Interest Rate Maturity
Date Periodic Payment Term Mortgages Amount

Mortgage Note Secured by
the Albuquerque property 7.75% 11/1/2021 144 monthly installments $1,500,000 $1,126,983

Mortgage Note Secured by
the Ontario property 5.00% 1/14/2015

35 monthly installments, with
balloon payment of $5,630,315
due at maturity

9,000,000 5,983,480

Mortgage Note Secured by
the Yuma property

Prime Rate
plus 1

point over
index,

floor of 5%

8/1/2022
119 monthly installments, with
balloon payment of $4,112,4618
due at maturity

5,500,000 5,355,051

Mortgage Note Secured by
the Tucson St. Mary's
property

Prime Rate 1/28/2015
83 monthly installments, with
balloon payment of $4,874,618
due at maturity

6,050,000 5,039,946

Mortgage Note Secured by
the Tucson Foothills
property

8.00% 5/1/2016 180 monthly installments 5,100,000 1,241,111

$27,150,000 $18,746,571

MORTGAGE NOTE RECONCILIATION

Balance at January 31, 2012 $21,271,256

Additions during period:

Proceeds from refinancing $500,000
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Accrued interest reclassified to note payable $240,700

Deductions during period

Principal payments $(2,057,032 )

Balance at January 31, 2013 $19,954,924

Additions during period:

Proceeds from refinancing $-

Accrued interest reclassified to note payable $-

Deductions during period

Principal payments $(1,208,353 )

Balance at January 31, 2014 $18,746,571
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Item 9.  CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

Item 9A.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we conducted an evaluation under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. The term "disclosure controls and
procedures," as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the company in the reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of January 31, 2014.

Our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, does not expect that our
disclosure controls and procedures or our internal controls will prevent all error or fraud. A control system, no matter
how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
control system are met.  Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints
and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs.  Due to the inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any,
have been detected.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 2014.  In
making this assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission ("COSO") in Internal Control — Integrated Framework.

Based on our assessment using those COSO criteria, our management concluded that at January 31, 2014 the Trust’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management believes that our consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended January 31, 2014 fairly present, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations
and cash flows for the periods presented.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our most recently completed
fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Item  9B.  OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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 PART III

Item 10.  TRUSTEES, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information required by this Item 10 as to our Trustees and Executive Officers is incorporated herein by reference to
the information set forth under the caption “Election of Trustees” in our definitive proxy statement for our 2014 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on June 27, 2014 (the “Proxy Statement”), which is expected to be filed with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, within 120 days after the end
of our fiscal year.

The information regarding the Audit Committee of our Board of Trustees and the information regarding the “audit
committee financial expert” are incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Board
Committees—Audit Committee” in the Proxy Statement.

Information required by Item 405 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth
under the caption “Certain Information Concerning the Trust—Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” in the Proxy Statement.

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and persons
performing similar functions.  We have posted our Code of Ethics on our website at www.innsuitestrust.com.  We
intend to satisfy all SEC and NYSE MKT disclosure requirements regarding any amendment to, or waiver of, the
Code of Ethics relating to our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and persons performing similar
functions, by posting such information on our website unless the NYSE MKT requires a Form 8-K.  In addition, we
have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of our employees, officers and Trustees.  It is also
available on our website at www.innsuitestrust.com.

Item 11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the
caption “Compensation of Trustees and Executive Officers” in the Proxy Statement.
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Item 12.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED           SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the
caption “Certain Information Concerning the Trust—Ownership of Shares” in the Proxy Statement.

The following table provides information about our equity compensation plans (other than qualified employee benefits
plans and plans available to shareholders on a pro rata basis) as of January 31, 2014:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan Category

Number of Securities
to

be Issued Upon
Exercise

of Outstanding
Options,

Warrants and Rights

(a)

Weighted
Average

Exercise
Price of

Outstanding
Options,

Warrants
and Rights

(b)

Number of Securities

Remaining

Available for Future

Issuance Under Equity

Compensation Plans

(Excluding Securities

Reflected in Column
(a))

(c)

Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 0 $ N/A 1,000,000 (1)

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders None      None None

______________

(1)  We have 1,000,000 options available for future grants under our 1997 Stock Incentive and Option Plan.
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Item 13.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND TRUSTEE  INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the
captions “Certain Transactions,” “Election of Trustees” and “Board Committees” in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption
“Certain Information Concerning the Trust—Audit Fees & Services” in the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(1) and (2)      Financial Statements and Schedules

Financial Statements/Schedules of InnSuites Hospitality Trust

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 20

Consolidated Balance Sheets – January 31, 2014 and 2013 21

Consolidated Statements of Operations – Years Ended January 31, 2014 and 2013 22

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity – Years Ended January 31, 2014 and 2013 23

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows – Years Ended January 31, 2014 and 2013 24

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements – Years Ended January 31, 2014 and 2013 25

Schedule III – Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation 40

Schedule IV – Mortgage Loans on Real Estate 42
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(a)(3)Exhibit List

Exhibit
No. Exhibit

3.1

Second Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of InnSuites Hospitality Trust dated June 16, 1998, as
further amended on July 12, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2005 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 16, 2005).

10.1
Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of RRF Limited Partnership dated March
24, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 26, 2014).

10.2*
Form of Indemnification Agreement between InnSuites Hospitality Trust and each Trustee and executive
officer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the
fiscal year ended January 31, 2006 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 12, 2006).

10.3*
InnSuites Hospitality Trust 1997 Stock Incentive and Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a)
of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on September 19, 2000).

10.4

Line of Credit Agreement, dated August 1, 2010, by and between RRF Limited Partnership and Rare Earth
Financial, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 2010 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 3, 2010).

10.5

Revolving Bank Line of Credit Promissory Note, dated November 23, 2010, executed by InnSuites
Hospitality Trust, Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited Partnership and RRF Limited Partnership, as
Borrowers, in favor of RepublicBankAZ, N.A., as Lender (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2010 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 9, 2010).

10.6

Revolving Bank Line of Credit Business Loan Agreement, dated November 23, 2010, by and among
InnSuites Hospitality Trust, Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited Partnership and RRF Limited Partnership,
as Borrowers, and RepublicBankAZ, N.A., as Lender (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2010 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 9, 2010).

 10.7 Change in Terms Agreement for Bank Line of Credit, dated May 12, 2011, executed by InnSuites
Hospitality Trust, Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited Partnership and RRF Limited Partnership, as
Borrowers, and James F. Wirth, as Guarantor, in favor of RepublicBankAZ N.A., as Lender (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
April 30, 2011 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 3, 2011).

10.8 Change in Terms Agreement for Bank Line of Credit, dated May 25, 2012, executed by InnSuites
Hospitality Trust, Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited Partnership and RRF Limited Partnership, as
Borrowers, and James F. Wirth, as Guarantor, in favor of RepublicBankAZ, N.A., as Lender (incorporated
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by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2012 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 30, 2012). 

10.9

Change in Terms Agreement for Bank Line of Credit, dated June 22, 2012, executed by InnSuites
Hospitality Trust, Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited Partnership and RRF Limited Partnership, as
Borrowers, and James F. Wirth, as Guarantor, in favor of RepublicBankAZ, N.A., as Lender (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 25, 2012).

10.10

Addendum, dated August 27, 2012, to Business Loan Agreement, dated November 23, 2010, by and among
InnSuites Hospitality Trust, Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited Partnership and RRF Limited Partnership,
as Borrowers, and RepublicBankAZ, N.A., as Lender (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 2012 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14, 2012).

10.11

Change in Terms Agreement for Bank Line of Credit, dated September 14, 2012, executed by InnSuites
Hospitality Trust, Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited Partnership and RRF Limited Partnership, as
Borrowers, and James F. Wirth, as Guarantor, in favor of RepublicBankAZ, N.A., as Lender (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
October 31, 2012 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 17, 2012).
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10.12

Change in Terms Agreement for Bank Line of Credit, dated June 11, 2013, executed by InnSuites Hospitality
Trust, Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited Partnership and RRF Limited Partnership, as Borrowers, and
Republic Bank AZ, N.A., as Lender (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 2013 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 11, 2013).

10.13

Business Loan Agreement, dated as of August 24, 2012, by and among Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited
Partnership, as Borrower, and 1st Bank Yuma, as Lender, guaranteed by InnSuites Hospitality Trust
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended October 31, 2012 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 17, 2012).

10.14

Business Loan and Security Agreement, dated November 25, 2013, by and between Yuma Hospitality
Properties Limited Partnership, as Borrower, and American Express Bank FSB, as Lender (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October
31, 2013 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 6, 2013).

10.15

Promissory Note, dated as of August 24, 2012, issued by Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited Partnership, as
Borrower, in favor of 1st Bank Yuma, as Lender, executed by Yuma Hospitality Properties Limited
Partnership and InnSuites Hospitality Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2012 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on December 17, 2012).

10.16

Business Loan and Security Agreement dated September 23, 2013, by and between Ontario Hospitality
Properties, LP, as Borrower and American Express Bank, FSB, as Lender (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2013 files with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 6, 2013).

10.17

Albuquerque Suite Hospitality, LLC Restructuring Agreement, dated August 30, 2010, by and among RRF
Limited Partnership, Rare Earth Financial, LLC, InnSuites Hospitality Trust, James F. Wirth, and Albuquerque
Suite Hospitality, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 2010 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 3, 2010).

10.18

Tucson Hospitality Properties LP Restructuring Agreement, dated February 17, 2011, by and among Rare
Earth Financial, LLC, RRF Limited Partnership, InnSuites Hospitality Trust, Tucson Hospitality Properties LP,
and James F. Wirth (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2011 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 29,
2011).

10.19

Albuquerque Suite Hospitality, LLC Restructuring Agreement, dated December 9, 2013, by and among RRF
Limited Partnership, Rare Earth Financial, LLC, InnSuites Hospitality Trust, James F. Wirth, and Albuquerque
Suite Hospitality, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April
21, 2014).

10.20 Tucson Hospitality Properties LP updated Restructuring Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2013, by and
among Rare Earth Financial, LLC, RRF Limited Partnership, InnSuites Hospitality Trust, and Tucson
Hospitality Properties LP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
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Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2013 filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 6, 2013).

10.21

Ontario Hospitality Properties LP Restructuring Agreement, dated February 29, 2012, by and among Rare
Earth Financial, LLC, RRF Limited Partnership, InnSuites Hospitality Trust, Ontario Hospitality Properties
LP, and James F. Wirth (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the Registrant’s Annual report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2012 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April
30, 2012).

10.22
Partnership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated March 24, 2014, by and between InnSuites Hospitality Trust
and Suite Hotels, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K files with he Securities and Exchange Commission on March 26, 2014).

10.23
Employment Offer Letter from InnSuites Hospitality Trust to Adam B. Remis (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 18,
2013).

 21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
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31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101 XBRL Exhibits

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Labels Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

*                         Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

 SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Trust has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

INNSUITES HOSPITALITY TRUST

Dated:  April 28, 2014 By:/s/  James F. Wirth
James F. Wirth, Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated:  April 28, 2014 By:/s/  Adam B. Remis
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Adam B. Remis, Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Trust and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Dated: April 28, 2014 By:/s/  James F. Wirth
James F. Wirth, Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: April 28, 2014 By:/s/  Adam B. Remis
Adam B. Remis, Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Dated: April 28, 2014 By:/s/  Marc E. Berg
Marc E. Berg, Trustee

Dated: April 28, 2014 By:/s/  Steven S. Robson
Steven S. Robson, Trustee

Dated: April 28, 2014 By:/s/  Les Kutasi
Les Kutasi, Trustee

Dated: April 28, 2014 By:/s/  Larry Pelegrin
Larry Pelegrin, Trustee

Dated: April 28, 2014 By:/s/  Cynthia Ketcherside
Cynthia Ketcherside, Trustee

Dated: April 28 , 2014 By:/s/  Pamela Barnhill
Pamela Barnhill, Trustee
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